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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

25 Hall Street
Concord. N.H. 03301

June 4, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education (NHED). Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) to
enter into a sole source agreement with Granite State Independent Living (GSIL), Concord, NH,
(vendor # 155330), in an amount not to exceed $2,645,020.80 to provide the "Inspiring the Mastery
of Postsecondary Achievement in College, Careers & Training" (IMPACCT) program in tlvc
regions of NH, with an option to renew for two additional one year terms effective upon Governor
and Council approval for the period of September 1,2025 through August 31,2027. 100% Federal
Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account in Fiscal Years 2026 through 2028,
upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the
authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between fiscal
years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

36-56-56-565010-2538000 VR FIELD PROGRAMS - FEDERAL
Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Amount

2026 603-504150 VR Clients $881,673.20
2027 603-504150 VR Clients $1,322,510.40
2028 603-504150 VR Clients $440,837.20

Total $2,645,020.80

EXPLANATION

This contract is sole source because GSIL is the only provider of "IMPACCT Academy"
providing the 5 required pre-employment transition services. GSIL has been providing this
program since 2016 and was originally funded through a Request for Proposal process. This
request is to continue funding the "Inspiring the Mastery of Postsecondary Achievement in



Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

College, Careers & Training" (IMPACCT) Pre-Employment Transition Service (Pre-ETS)
program, which is a collaboration between the Department of Education, Bureau of Vocational
Rehabilitation and Granite State Independent Living. The program was developed and
implemented in 2016 after the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act was reauthorized, that
required VR to set aside 15% of Federal funding to provide'Pre-ETS to potentially eligible
students.

Since 2016, the Pre-Employment Transition Services (Pre-ETS) program has been successfully
implemented in key regions across the state, including the North Country (Berlin/Littleton),
Nashua, Portsmouth, Manchester, and Concord. This comprehensive program operates for 14
weeks during the academic year and 5 weeks in the summer, delivering all five federally required
Pre-ETS components: job exploration counseling, work readiness training, work-based learning
experiences, counseling on post-secondary education and training options, and instruction in self-
advocacy. The program supports students with disabilities in developing the skills and knowledge
needed for successful transitions to employment or further education. In addition to gaining
valuable experience, participating students earn high school credit. To date, 5,240.5 hours of
Extended Learning Opportunities (ELOs) have been completed, resulting in the awarding of
3,526.25 academic credits. The program served 221 students in their previous contract. These
outcomes reflect both the program's strong alignment with WIOA mandates and its impact on
student success.

The program was originally developed through a request for proposal (RFP) process in 2016 and
GSIL was the chosen vendor to provide the program in the state. VR and GSIL are looking to
continue this partnership to enhance the provision of Pre-ETS in the state.

Respectfully submitt^.

01 om
Frank Edelblut

Commissioner of Education
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State .Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Education
(NHED)

1.2 State Agency .Address

25 Hall Street *
Concord. NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Granite State Independent Living {VC#I55330)

1.4 Contractor Address

21 Chenell Drive

Concord. NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-228-9680

1.6 Account Unit and Class

See Exhibit C

t .7 Completion Date

08/31/2027

1 .8 Price Limitation

$2,645,020.80

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Jov Sabolevski. Transition Service Administrator

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

603-419-0086

1.1 1 Contractor Signature

^0, 2025

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Deborah Ritcey. Chief Executive Officer

1.13 Slate .Agency Signatured 1 .14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Frank Edelblut, Commissioner of Education

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 .Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

By: Elizab^'^ra^iv^^m^^ On; 6/20/2025
1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date;
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampsliire. acting through the agency identified in block I.I
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor'")
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached E.XHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
("Ser\'ices").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrar)', and subject to the approval of the Governor and E.xecutive
Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder. shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council

approve this .Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Serxices performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies

the appropriation or availabilit)' of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this .Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds

in that .Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTR.ACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C which
is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the perfonnance

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetar)' damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the Stale.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace. Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex. sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identit)'. or gender expression, and will take affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors comply
with these nondiscrimination requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United Stales
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and ail
rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9. or any
successor, shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to this
.Agreement.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor'shall constitute an event of default hereunder {"Event of
Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this .Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one. or more, or ail. of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of (he notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, tenninate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion ofthe contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that

the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the Stale may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8. the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not later than fiffeen (15) calendar days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at the State's
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

lO.I As used in this Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be relumed
to the State upon demand or upon temiination of this Agreement
for any reason.
10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be

governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the Slate or receive
any benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASS1GNMENT/DELECATI0N/SUBC0NTR.ACTS.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12. a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None ofthe Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.
12.4 The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's

sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination
of this Agreement.
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14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, (he following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
SI.000.000 per occurrence and 52,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Propert)'
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Propert)'.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer

identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. .At the
request of the Contracting OfTicer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide certificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENS.ATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 28I-.A ("H'orkers'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-.A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this .Agreement. The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The Slate shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH, A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. .Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance \viih the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any part)'.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between

the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
■Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modify'ing
provisions set forth in the attached E.XHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to cany out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of this
•Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

Special Provisions

Additional Exhibits D-G

Attachment I incorporated by reference

Federal Certification 2 CFR 200.415

Required certifications include: (a) To assure that expenditures are proper and in accordance with
the temis and conditions of the Federal award and approved project budgets, the annual and final
fiscal reports or vouchers requesting payment under the agreements must include a certification,
signed by an official who is authorized to legally bind the non-Federal entity, which reads as
follows:

By signing this report, I cenify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the report is true,
complete, and accurate, and the expenditures, disbursements and cash receipts are for the purposes
and objectives set forth in the terms and conditions of the Federal award. I am aware that any false,
fictitious, or fraudulent information, or the omission of any material fact, may subject me to
criminal, civil or administrative penalties for fraud, false statements, false claims or otherwise.
(U.S. Code Title 18, Section 1001 and Title 31, Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Renewal Option

Subject to Governor and Council approval, authorize the New Hampshire Department of Education
to include two (2) additional one (I) year renewal options on this contract, subject to the
contractor's acceptable performance of the temis therein, and pending availability of funding.

Renewal September 1, 2027 to August 31, 2028
Renewal September 1, 2028 to August 31, 2029

Coniracl belM'Ci'n Granite Stale Independent Living and the i\'ew Hampshire Deixirtment of Education
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EXHIBIT B

Scope of Sen iccs

Granite Slate Independent Living (GSIL) will provide the following ser\'ices to the New Hampshire
Department of Education, Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation (VRNH). effective upon Governor and
Council approval.

The contractor, GSIL, shall provide the five (5) required Pre-Employment Transition Services (Pre-ETS),
as outlined in the Workforce Innovations Opportunity Act (WIOA) and in the VR Federal Regulations by
providing the "Inspiring the Mastery of Postsecondary Achievement in College, Careers and Training
(IMPACCT)" program in five locations around the state (North Countiy) Berlin/Littleton, Concord,
Manchester, Nashua, and Portsmouth.

The contractor, GSIL, will utilize the culmination of the IMPACCT Academy program evaluation (June
2023) report developed by a third-party consultant and IMPACCT evaluation fidelity review completed by
IMPACCT, to highlight the return on investment and value of the IMPACCT program. This evaluation
shall be utilized to establish agreements with school districts for a portion of the sustainability of the
program after this contract ends.

As defined by WIOA. all students with a disability, who are eligible or potentially eligible, will meet the
required criteria to participate in IMPACCT. The IMPACCT program is a 16-week (fall and spring) and 5-
week (summer) comprehensive program that provides ail five required Pre-ETS services (job e.\ploration
counseling, work readiness skills, work-based learning opportunities, counseling on posl-secondao'
education opportunities and self-advocacy) to students who are eligible or potentially eligible. The
following are the modules provided to students for the program and may include, but not limited to:

1. Job Exploration Module

i. Complete an interest inventory
ii. Complete a self-report assessment
iii. Complete a career ladder
iv. Listen to employers speaking about the day-to-day operations and expectations of the
workplace
V. Listen to employers speaking about possible positions within a company

2. Work-Based Learning Experiences Module
i. Identify what types of work-based learning experience they already have
completed
ii. Identify workplaces in which they might like to have an e.xperience
iii. Identify transferable skills
iv. Participate in their desired work-based learning experience

3. Counseling on Post-Secondary Education Opportunities
i. Receive labor market information

ii. Receive information on how to use public transportation
iii. Receive infomiation on budgeting
iv. Receive information on health management
V. Receive infomiation on healthy recreational activities
vi. Receive infomiation on NHVR ser\'ices and how to appiv for services
vii. Receive exposure on potential post-secondary options like:

Coniraci between Graniie Stale Independent Living and the A'of Hampshire Department ofEducation
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1. Rapidly growing careers
2. Community colleges
3. Trade schools/technical schools

4. Four-year colleges

4. Workplace Readiness Training Module
a. Students receive information on social skills and independent living skills
b. Employers and students experience mock inten'iews
c. Students receive feedback on interviewing skills
d. Students receive training regarding professional presentation and appearance
e. Students produce a resume, cover letter and thank you notes

5. Self-Advocacy Module
a. Students receive infonTjation and training regarding personalized planning to learn how
to advocate for themselves independently and in the presence of support throughout the
transition process
b. Students receive training on how to identify positive supports
c. Students identify positive adult supports
d. Students identify positive peer supports

GSIL shall provide the following sendees to VRNH:

1. GSIL will assist in the collection of the identified documentation requirements for eligibility.
Traditionally underserved populations are identified and provided equal opportunity to participate, such as
students who are in all levels of placements, deaf or hard of hearing, and/or from rural settings.

2. GSIL will ensure a student roster for each cohort per region is sent to VR no later than fourteen (14)
days prior to the start of the cohort. VR will provide the Participant ID to GSIL within five (5) business
days of receiving the roster.

3. GSIL will provide a signed registration form for each student enrolled no later than fourteen (14) days
prior to the start of the cohort. If a student drops out of the application process. GSIL has seven (7) days
prior to the stale date of the program to submit a registration fomi to replace said applicant. If. only during
the first five (5) days of the program, a student chooses not to participate in the program, GSIL will enact
the wait list, if applicable.

4. GSIL will provide the module programming in five areas of the state (Berlin/Littleton, Concord,
Manchester, Nashua, and Portsmouth.)

5. GSIL will provide an Academy experience, via the GSIL IMPACCT Program, which will consist of
three cohorts per year ser\'ing a minimum of 180 students with cohort sizes per region not to exceed 25
students, and to the extent possible will be held at a regional community college or other designated
location.

The curriculum/content for the Academy will be solely the five required Transition Ser\'ices as identified
in WIOA. The structure of the program will be training room/classroom time, work experience, adapted as
needed based on the needs of the students, schools, and work environment in each awarded region. Each
cohort will provide a minimum of twelve (12) direct service hours to the students weekly. GSIL will provide
an additional 40-hour work-based learning experience at an approved Department of Labor (DDL) business
site in the community to each student participating in the Academy cohort.

Contract bet\vci:n Granite State Independent Living and the New Hampshire Department ofEducation
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6. GSIL will ensure that those participating in the Academy experience have the opportunity to earn
academic credits by mastering the necessary competencies through Extended Learning Opportunities
(ELOs) related to the five (5) Pre-ETS services.

Including but not limited to:

i. The National Career Readiness Certificate

ii. Online credit recovery and remedial education
iii. High School Equivalency Tesl{HiSET) preparation tools
iv. Peer mentoring
V. Job shadows

vi. Job tours

vii. Information interviews

viii. Internships

7. GSIL will ensure that transportation arrangements are made with the participating schools in each region
for participating students to get to and from the program each day.

8. GSIL will identify a point of contact at each participating school who will serve as the point person for
the IMPACCT Academy and assist with appropriate on-site administrative tasks. Ensure efTective
collaboration with schools and Special Education professionals to coordinate provision of services to
students with disabilities and school transition plans.

9. GSIL will engage, coordinate, and facilitate VRNH designated representatives at the following stages
of the program cohorts (referral with school district, new cohort orientation, workshops, coordinate a
scheduled lime for VRNH to provide VR overview of services, e.vit inter\'iews, and graduation).

10. GSIL will work in collaboration with VRNH offices to determine if there are any students who are
interested in being part of a cohort prior to filling spots from participating schools.

1 1. GSIL will ensure the employers are appropriately involved in the deliver)' of Pre-Employment
Transition Services being sure to include: Presenting information about their specific industry,
opportunities within the industry and/or the employers' specific organization such as. after school
opportunities, training opportunities, and other types of opportunities, presenting a basic over\'iew of
workplace expectations such as. soft skills, appropriate verbal communication, appropriate electronic
communication, appropriate customer interactions, appropriate conflict resolution, and appropriate overall
workplace behavior.

12. GSIL will ensure any and all marketing materials used to promote the specific services listed above
shall prominently display the VRNH logo and communicate clearly that the services are being provided at
the request of VRNH and as a result of direct funding by VRNH and the Department of Education.

13. GSIL will ensure that the fall cohort in all service regions does not begin until on or after October 1"
of each contractual year.

Reporting Requirements:

GSIL shall provide, no later than fourteen (14) days prior to the start of the program, the student rosters for
each cohort per region, and a registration form approved by VRNH containing the required data elements
signed by the student, school official and parent or guardian, if applicable. If changes to student enrollment
occur, GSIL must contact the VRNH Transition Coordinator within a reasonable amount of time, not to

Coniraci betiveen Granite State Independent Living and the i\'ew Hampshire Department ofEducation

Page 4 of 7
Contractor Initials

£)<//t'JunlO.2025



exceed five (5) business days after confirming that the student is not participating, to request a change to
the initial cohort roster.

Upon completion, of the program. VRNH will receive an electronic copy of the student's portfolio,
documenting what was completed during the program. Documents should include resumes, detailed
information about the student's work-based learning experiences, work logs, interest inventories, and other
documents helpful to the VR planning process.

GSIL shall provide a monthly student progress report per region by the 10"'' day of the following month.
The monthly report will be submitted to the designated regional office invoice email, Student Transition
Specialist (STS), and the Transition Coordinator with the following information:

• Identifving Information: The part of the curriculum as identified in the Pre-ETS module. Pre-
ETS provider, student name, grade of student, student expected graduation year, and date of when
the parent and /or student signed the registration form.

• Status Report: Summary' ofany collaboration which may have occurred with school, parent, etc.;
student strengths; the five (5) Pre -ETS curriculum service components covered; areas of growth,
recommendations, student action items, overall observations, and signature and date of GSIL
staff.

GSIL shall provide a report, within 30 days of the commencement of each cohort to be included with the
cohort's invoice, that summarizes the following data for each regional site:

• Cohort statistics (number of students, schools represented, disability information, VR
participant ID);

• Number of credits attained and in what specialty;

• Number of different employers providing student experiences and their names;

• Number of students with part or full time employment at the end of IMPACCT;

• Number of students returning to school that may have dropped out; and

• With assistance from VRNH. the number of students who are VRNH customers

GSIL shall conduct a fidelity review for each IMPACCT Academy cohort in each program region following
the conclusion of each contract year. A separate review shall be completed for each cohort delivered at each
regional site. All reviews must be submitted to VRNH within sixty (60) days of either the completion of
the Summer Cohort or contract expiration, whichever occurs first. The fidelity review shall assess
adherence to the contractual measures outlined in the program agreement and shall include findings for
each required measure, with supporting comments and documentation as appropriate. The fidelity review
shall be completed using the format provided in Attachment 1. which outlines the required contractual
measures and reporting format.

Invoicing Requirements:

Payment is to be made on the basis of an invoice that is received within 30 days following the
commencement of each cohort and supported by a cohort report, that is completed in accordance with the
terms of the contract. GSIL is to provide one invoice per cohort, separated by region, with program dates
per region per cohort included. Invoice shall be billed per student cost with Participant ID included. If GSIL
ser\'es more than the minimum student amount, students and their Participant IDs are to be listed on the
invoice at zero cost.

Comract between Granite State Independent Living and the A'cti' Hampshire Depiirtment of Education
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The vendor shall maintain sufficient documentation on file to support invoices and make such
documentation available for review by authorized NHED staff and/or its auditors. Complete documentation
to support invoices shall be maintained by the vendor for no less than three years as required under federal
regulation.

The vendor is solely responsible for paying to the New Hampshire Department of Education any disallowed
costs associated with the misappropriation of federal funds and/or costs expended that the vendor is not
able to sufficiently support with e.xpenditure backup documentation upon request for up to three (3) years
commencing the contract end date.

The State of New Hampshire Department of Education, Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation requires the
following for all invoices. Any invoice received that does not have the following will be returned to the
vendor for updates/corrections and, in turn, delay the remit of payment.

□ Vendor Name

□ Vendor Address
□ Vendor Phone Number
Q Invoice Number
□ Date

□ Expense Period (Reporting Period)
o Vendor Contact Person Name
□ Vendor Contact Person Phone

□ Vendor Contact Person Email
□ Invoice addressed to:

[Assigned Agency Point of Contact Name]
New Hampshire Department of Education
21 S. Fruit St. Concord NH 03301

□ Invoice billed by deliverable(s) outlined in contract Exhibit C
□ Total Invoice Amount
□ Sunimar)' of all billable items providing validit>' of e.xpenses being requested for reimbursement on this
invoice.

Conlraci between Granite State Indepemient Living and the Hampshire Department of Education

Page 6 of 7
Contractor Initials

Date Jun 10,2025



EXHIBIT C

Method of Payment

Budget:

Deliverable

Total

Students Per

Year

Cost Per

Student
Year 1 Year 2 Total

3 Cohorts

(Fall/Spri ng/Summer) 180 7,347.28 $1,322,510.40 $1,322,510.40 $2,645,020.80

TOTAL $2,645,020.80

Limitation on Price:

Upon mutual agreement between the state contracting ofdcer and the contractor, line items in this budget
may be adjusted from one to another, but in no case shall the total budget exceed the price limitation of
$2,645,020.80 To be binding on the state, such adjustments of budget line items must be memorialized in
writing, executed by the contracting officer and approved by the Commissioner.

Source of Funding:

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account in Fiscal Years 2026 through 2028.
upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the
authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between fiscal
years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

06-56-56-565010-2538000 VR Field Programs-Federal

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Amount

2026 603-504150 VR Clients $881,673.20

2027 603-504150 VR Clients $1,322,510.40

2028 603-504150 VR Clients $440,837.20

Total $2,645,020.80

Method of Payment:

Payment is to be made on the basis of an invoice that is received within 30 days following the
commencement of each cohort and supported by a cohort report, that is completed in accordance with the
temis of the contract. If otherwise correct and acceptable, payment will be made for 100% of the
expenditures listed. A final invoice is due within 30 days of the end of this contract. Failure to submit the
invoice by this date could result in non-payment, invoices and reports shall be submitted electronically to:

Joy Sabolevski
Joy.P.Sabolevski@doe.nh.gov

Cc: Jillian.H.Cotrona@doe.nh.gov
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EXHIBIT D

Contractor Obligations

Contracts in excess of the simplified acquisition threshold (currently set at $250,000) must address
administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where the contractors violate or breach
contract temis, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate. Reference:
2 C.F.R. § 200.326 and 2 C.F.R. 200, Appendix II. required contract clauses.

The contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and
Statements) applies to the contractor's actions pertaining to this contract.

The Contractor, certifies and affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its certification and
disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. §
3801 et seq., apply to this certification and disclosure, if any.

Breach

A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds for tennination of the contract, and for debarmenl
as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. § 5.12.

Fraud and False Statements

The Contractor understands that, if the project which is the subject of this Contract is financed in whole or
in pan by federal funds, that if the undersigned, the company that the Contractor represents, or any
employee or agent thereof, knowingly makes any false statement, representation, report or claim as to the
character, quality, quantity, or cost of material used or to be used, or quantity or quality work performed or
to be perfomied, or makes any false statement or representation of a material fact in any statement,
cenificate, or report, the Contractor and any company that the Contractor represents may be subject to
prosecution under the provision of 18 USC §1001 and § 1020.

Environmental Protection

(This clause is applicable if this Contract exceeds $150,000. It applies to Federal-aid contracts only.)
The Contractor is required to comply with all applicable standards, orders or requirements issued under
Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857 (h). Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368),
Executive Order 1 1738, and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations (40 CFR Part 15) which
prohibit the use under non-e.xempt Federal contracts, grants or loans of facilities included on the EPA List
of Violating Facilities. Violations shall be reported to the FHWA and to the U.S. EPA Assistant
Administrator for Enforcement.

Procurement of Recovered Materials

In accordance with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 U.S.C. § 6962), State agencies and
agencies of a political subdivision of a state that are using appropriated Federal fijnds for procurement must
procure items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR 247 that
contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory
level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity
acquired in the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; must procure solid waste management services in
a manner that maximizes energy and resource recover)'; and must have established an affirmative
procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.

Revised June 2022
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Exhibit C

Federal Debarmentand Suspension

a. By signature on this Contract, the Contractor certifies its compliance, and the compliance of its
Sub-Contractors, present or future, by stating that any person associated therewith in the capacity
of owner, partner, director, officer, principal investor, project director, manager, auditor, or any
position of authority involving federal funds:

1. Is not currently under suspension, debamient, voluntary exclusion, or determination of
ineligibility by any Federal Agency;

2. Docs not have a proposed debarment pending;

3. Has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily e.xcluded or determined ineligible by any
Federal Agency within the past three (3) years; and

4. Has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against the firm by a court
of competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct within the past
three (3) years.

b. Where the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor is unable to certify to the statement in Section a.l.
above, the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor shall be declared ineligible to enter into Contract or
participate in the project.

c. Where the Contractor or Sub-Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements as listed in
Sections a.2., a.3., or a.4., above, the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor shall submit a written
explanation to the NHED. The certification or explanation shall be considered in connection with
the NHED's determination whether to enter into Contract.

d. The Contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the NHED if, at any time,
the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor, learn that its Debarment and Suspension certification has
become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

Revised June 2022
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Exhibit F

Anti-Lobbying

The Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121,
Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, execute the following Certification:

The Contractor certifies, by signing and submitting this contract, to the best of his/her knowledge and belief,
that:

a. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or shall be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned,
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence any officer or employee of any State or
Federal Agency, a Member of Congress, an oftlcer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into any cooperative agreement, and the
extension, continuation, renewal amendment, or modification of any Federal contract grant, loan,
or cooperative agreement.

b. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or shall be paid to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal Agency, a Member
of Congress, and ofTicer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall
complete and submit the "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" form in accordance with its
instructions

https://www.gsa.tzov/forms-librarv/disclosure-lobbvini^-activities

c. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
and entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31 and U.S. Code. Any person
who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

d. The Contractor also agrees, by signing this contract that it shall require that the language of this
certification be included in subcontracts with all Sub-Contractor(s) and lower-tier Sub-Contractors
which e.xceed $100,000 and that all such Sub-Contractors and lower-tier Sub-Contractors shall

certify and disclose accordingly.

e. The NHED shall keep the fimvs certification on file as part of its original contract. The Contractor
shall keep individual certifications from all Sub-Contractors and lower-tier Sub-Contractors on file.
Certification shall be retained for three (3) years following completion and acceptance of any given
project.

Revised June 2022
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Exhibit G

Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract, Copy Rights and Confidentia!it>'

Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement
Contracts or agreements for the performance of experimental, developmental, or research work shall
provide for the rights of the Federal Government and the recipient in any resulting invention in accordance
with 37 CFR part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms
Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing regulations
issued by the NHED.

Any discover)' or invention that arises during the course of the contract shall be reported to the NHED. The
Contractor is required to disclose inventions promptly to the contracting officer (within 2 months) after the
inventor discloses it in writing to contractor personnel responsible for patent matters. The awarding agency
shall determine how rights in the invention/discovery shall be allocated consistent with "Government Patent
Policy" and Title 37 C.F.R. § 401.

Conndentialit}'
All Written and oral infomiation and materials disclosed or provided by the NHED under this agreement
constitutes Confidential Information, regardless of whether such information was provided before or after
the date on this agreement or how it was provided.

The Contractor and representatives thereof, acknowledge that by making use of, acquiring or adding to
information about matters and data related to this agreement, which are confidential to the NHED and its
partners, must remain the e.xclusive property of the NHED.

Confidential information means all data and information related to the business and operation of the NHED,
including but not limited to all school and student data contained in NH Title XV. Education. Chapters 186-
200.

Confidential information includes but is not limited to, student and school district data, revenue and cost
information, the source code for computer software and hardware products owned in part or in whole by
the NHED, financial information, partner infomiation(including the identity of NHED partners), Contractor
and supplier infonnation, (including the identity of NHED Contractors and suppliers), and any information
that has been marked "confidential" or "proprietar)'", or with the like designation. During the term of this
contract the Contractor agrees to abide by such rules as may be adopted from time to time by the NHED to
maintain the security of ail confidential infonnation. TheContractor further agrees that it will always regard
and preserve as confidential information/data received during the performance of this contract. The
Contractor will not use. copy, make notes, or use excerpts of any confidential information, nor will it give,
disclose, provide access to, or otherwise make available any confidential information to any person not
employed or contracted by the NHED or subcontracted with the Contractor.

Ownership of Intellectual Propert)'
The NHED shall retain ownership of all source data and other intellectual property of the NHED provided
to the Contractor in order to complete the services of this agreement. As well the NHED will retain
copyright ownership for any and all materials, patents and intellectual property produced, including, but
not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols, guidelines, posters, or reports. The Contractor
shall not reproduce any materials for purposes other than use for the terms under the contract without prior
written approval from the NHED.

Revised .June 2022
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Attachment 1

IMPACCT Program Fidelity Review Tool

This tool is designed to assess fidelity to the IMPACCT program contract by reviewing
delivery of services, student participation, and compliance with key contractual measures.

For each item, indicate whether the measure was met and provide observations or notes in

the comments section.

Program Structure and Cohort Delivery

Review Question Met? fY/Nl Comments

Was there a program
offered for each cohort?

Did each cohort begin
with 14 students?

Were cohorts held at the

designated local college
sites?

Was each cohort either 16

or 5 weeks in length?

Did each student complete
40 hours of work-based

learning per cohort?

Were all required Pre-ETS
services covered?

Work-Based Learning Services

Review Question Met? fY/N) Comments

Were previous work-based

experiences identified for
students?

Were student interests for

future work-based

experiences identified?

Were transferable skills

identified for students?

Did all students participate
in a work-based learning
experience?

Workplace Readiness Training

Review Question Met? fY/Nl Comments

Did students receive

training on social skills and
independent living?



Were mock interviews

completed by employers

and students?

Did students receive

feedback on interview

skills?

Did students receive

training on professional
presentation and
appearance?

Did students complete a
resume, cover letter, and

thank-you notes?

Job Exploration Counseling

Review Question Met? fY/Nl Comments

Was an interest inventory

completed?

Was a self-report
assessment completed?

Was a career ladder

reviewed with students?

Did employers describe
day-to-day operations and

expectations?

Did employers describe
possible positions within

their companies?

Postsecondary Education Counseling

Review Question Met? fY/Nl Comments

Did students receive labor

market information?

Did students receive

instruction on using public
transportation?

Did students receive

information on budgeting?

Did students receive health

management information?

Did students receive

guidance on healthy
recreational activities?

Did students receive VR

services information and

application support?

Did students receive

exposure to postsecondary

options:



- Rapidly growing careers

- Community colleges

- Trade schools

- Four-year colleges

• Technical schools

Self-Advocacy Training

Review Question Met? fY/Nl Comments

Did students receive

training on personalized
planning and advocacy?

Did students identify
positive adult supports?

Did students identify
positive peer supports?

Did students identify

positive supports overall?

Academic and Community Engagement

Review Question Met? fY/Nl Comments

Did students earn credits

through mastery of ELO
competencies?

Did the program engage
with community partners
and employers?

Did the program collaborate
with high schools and
special education

professionals?

Provider (GSIL) Responsibilities

Review Question Met? fY/Nl Comments

Were signed registration
forms submitted to VR

before program start?

Was the program delivered
in all required geographic
locations?

Was transportation

coordinated with school

districts or provided as

needed?

Was there a designated
school contact for each

student?



Were all students verified to

meetWlOA eligibility
criteria?

Were marketing and
presentation materials

developed?

Did employers provide
meaningful learning
experiences?

Did NHVR present to each
cohort on applying for
services?

Were student portfolios
submitted to NHVR after

program completion?

Reporting and Outcomes

Review Question Met? fY/N) Comments

Were cohort statistics

(student count, school
representation, disability

data"} submitted?

Were credits earned and

subiect areas reported?

Were employer names and
experience details
submitted?

Were employment

outcomes at program end
reported?

Was data on school re-

enrollment and NHVR

participation tracked and
shared?

Fidelity Review Submission Information

Please complete the information below:

Contractual Dates Under Review:

Dates of each Cohort: Fall:

Spring:

Summer:

Date Fidelity Review Completed:

Submitted By (Name"):

Title/Organization:

Signature and Attestation: 1 certify that the information provided in
this fidelity review is accurate and
complete to the best of my knowledge.



Certificate of Aiilhoritv

I, Grant Van Der Bckcn, hereby ecrtify that 1 am a duly appointed respesenative of

Granite State Independent Living (GSIL). 1 hereby certify that Deborah ILltcey, t^resident &

Chief Executive Olficer, is authorized to execute contracts on behalf of Granite Stale

Independent Living and may bind the organization.

I hereby certify:

1. I am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such books;

2. The following is ti'ue, accurate, complete, the Board of Directors duly approved via

Board Meeting held on May 21, 2025, to enter into an Agreement for the organization's

IMPACCT program with the Department of Educations which was duly completed in

accordance with the State of New Hampshire law and the by-laws of the Organization;

3. The foregoing adoption has not been amended or revoked and remain in full force and

effect as of the date hereof.

This authority remains valid for thirty (30) days. 1 further certify that it is understood that the

State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above

currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the

corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to

bind the corporation in contracts with the State ofNew Hampshire, all such limitations are

expressly stated herein.

Dated: O ) Attest:

Grant Van Der Beken, Chaiiman

GSIL Board of Directors



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1. David M. Scanlan. Sccreiar>' ofStaic of ihc Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GRANITIi STATE INDEPENDENT

LIVING is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on January 29. 1980. I

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's olTice have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Bu.sines.s ID; 63257

Certificate Number: 0007142527

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be alTixed

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

this 1st day ol" .April .A,D. 2025.

David M. Scanlan

Secretarv of State



Client#: 492954 GRANISTA6

ACORD. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/OOrrYYY)

2/07/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

N?MEf" Christine Kopec
Ko.e.u: 855 874-0123

A^^REss: christine.kopec(gusi.com
INSURER($) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC »

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED

Granite State Independent Living

21 Chenell Drive

Concord, NH 03301

INSURER B Granite State Healthcare & Human Svc WC NONAIC

INSURERC

INSURERD

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AODL
INSR

SUBR
VWD POUCY NUMBER

POLICY EPF
IMM/DD/YYYY)

POUCY EXP
(mmiod/yyyyi UMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-UAOE ra OCCUR
02/01/2025 02/01/2026 EACH OCCURRENCE

.RENTED
Ea occurrence)

MEG EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL i ADV INJURY

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY 1 I JECr I I LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$1,000,000

slOO.OOO

$5,000

$1,000,000

$3,000,000

$3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 52/01/2025 02/01/2026
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accidenil si ,000.000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Pef person)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per aceiOeni)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

02/01/2025 02/01/2026 EACH OCCURRENCE $5,000,000

AGGREGATE $5.000.000

X RETENTION $10000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY „ , „
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE I 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

(Mandatory in NH)
K yes. describe urtder
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

01/01/2025 01/01/2026 V PER
* STATUTE

OTH-

ER

E-L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E-L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

Professional 02/01/2025 02/01/2026 $1,000,000/$3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH

Department of Education

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Vocational Rehabilitation

21 So. Fruit Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATTVE

Concord, NH 03301

1

ACORD 25 {2016/03) 1 of 1
#S48074308/M48070383

(S> 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
AEBZP



Granite State

Independent Living
Concord Main Office

21 Chenell Drive

Concord, NH 03301

603.228.9680

800.826.3700

603.225.3304 (fax)
www.gsil.o^

Bringing Independence to Life

Mission Statement

Granite State Independent Living (GSIL) is a
statewide nonprofit organization whose mission is to
promote quality of life with independence for people
with disabilities through advocacy, information,
education, support and transition services.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Granite State Independent Living

CliRTlFIRD PUBLIC ACCOUNmTS

WOLl-EBOKO • NORTH CONW'AY
DOVl-K • CONCORD

^Tm\m

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Granite State Independent Living
{a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position
as of September 30, 2021, and the related statement of activities and statement of functional
expenses for the year then ended, and the statement of cash flows for the years ended
September 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

I

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Granite State Independent Living as of September 30, 2021, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Granite State Independent Living's financial statements as of
September 30, 2020, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial
statements in our report date January 31, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020, is consistent, in
all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 23, 2022 on our consideration of Granite State Independent Living's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Granite State Independent Living's internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

oturru. lll^ch>crn/LLii 4- Prur^A^-<^crruit (X.<-<^c>occticrru

Dover, New Hampshire
December 23, 2022



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
fWITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS AS OF SEPTEMBER 30. 2Q2Q1

ASSETS

2021

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Investments

Property and equipment, net

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Without Donor

Restrictions

S  2.786,289
34.151

3.876,814

74.666

6.771,920

969.783

705.716

1,675.499

8.447.419

With Donor

Restrictions

30,912

TOTAL

2020

TOTAL

30,912

197,787

197,767

S  228,699

S  2,817,201 S 4.692.672
34,151

3,876.014
74,666

6.802.832

1.167,570
705,716

1,873,286

S  8,676,116

6,380

1,702,466
126,556

6.528,080

1,025,315
965.867

1.991.182

$  8,519,262

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Contracts payable

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions:

Time and purpose restricted
Perpetual endcn'mieni

Total net assets

114,291

470,383

47,743

293,018

930,435

7,516,984

7.516,984

30,912
197,737

228,699

114,291

470.383

47.743

298.018

930,435

7.516,984

30,912
197.787

7,745.683

285.541

953.137

206,116

317,409
7,288

1,769,491

6,518,342

34,942
196,487

6,749.771

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 8.447,419 $ 228,699 S  8,676,118 $ 8.519.262

See Notes to Financial.Statements



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LMMfl

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 20201

2021

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Grants

Public support
Special events, net

Program fees, net
Interest, net

Miscellaneous

Gain (loss) on sale of properly
Investment Income, net
Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue and support

EXPENSES

Program Services
Long-term care

Community Economic Development
REIvl

Total program services

Supporting Services
General and Administrative

Fundraising

Total supporting services

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

S  3.734,305

110.902

62,574

14.604,940

621

22.465

(28.241)

135,625
7,493

18,650,684

12,239,587

3,076,837
100,866

15,417,290

1.933,521

301,231

2.234,752

17.652.042

998.642

6.518.342

7.516,984

With Donor

Restrictions

S  3.463

1,300

(7.493)

(2.730)

(2,730)

231.429

$  228.699

Total

S  3.737.768

112.202

62,574

14.504,940

621

22,465

(28.241)

135,625

18.647,954

12.239,587

3.076,837
100.666

15.417.290

1,933.521
301.231

2,234,752

17.652,042

995,012

6,749,771

$  7,745.683

2020

Total

i  4.217.915

80.917

56,388

15.056.022

5.229

4,239

17.200

43.713

19.481.623

12,301,043

3,178.096

15,479.139

3,184,563
105.176

3.289.739

18.766.878

712,745

6.037.026

i  6,749.771

See Notes to Financial Statements



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

IWITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 20201

Program Service Supporting Scrvlcos

Community Tola! Total

Long-Term Economic Program Oaneril and Supporting 2021 2020
Care Dcvelounient REM Servtces AdmlMlstritfvo Fwflra'sinq Sorvicea Total Total

F«sonnel expenses.
Selwles srtil wages $ 9.942.009 S  1.679.735 S  53,333 S 11.675.133 5  922.X3 S  177,927 i V1X.020 S 12.775.153 5 t3.573.X2
EmployM ixnetits 1.217.469 372.654 7,467 1.587.5X 224.6X 11.3X 235.0X 1.833.490 2.041,948
Payrol taxes 763.033 124.284 4,267 X1.S64 iisieos 13,666 129.469 1.021.053 1.072.443

Grants 3.637 361.780 11.IX 396.517 395.517 387.494
Bulairtg occupancy 63.482 206.743 16,443 306,668 66.420 434 X.3S4 375.522 394.621
Inlormation leclvtology 29.170 37.408 145 65.723 118,056 240 110.106 185.919 239.982
Pfolessioral lees 20.036 3.442 230 23.710 149,717 1.8X 151.517 175.227 135.192
Dopreclation 38.216 95.560 133.778 37,934 199 38.133 171.909 319.619
Misctilanocus 24,729 44.659 1.156 70.544 50.191 4.718 S4.9X 125.453 97.294
Atherilting 28.554 15.956 666 43.176 13.628 67.154 X,7e2 123.958 53.295
Intuance 23.266 23.266 68.670 X.B70 91.936 88.857
GIDce. prirtting, pottage. erKl supplies 35.516 10.640 3,174 4^332 27. IX 12.139 39.299 x.e3i 116.743
Ttayel 50.472 32.390 62.862 I.XO 144 2,033 84.895 116.739
TelepPone 124 2.574 1.047 3,745 69.179 . 69.179 72.924 82.571
Transportation 1.128 36.189 1.7X 40,997 en 608 41.X5 45,434
Equpmenl lease and rrtainienance 448 44 492 35.872 35,872 36.384 49.551
Consunants 10 10 18.560 1,5X 20,069 20.079 3.5X
Duos and suoscilptions 3.025 3,116 135 6,276 4.427 4,814 9.241 15.517 17,072

PrWsslonal development 474 1,475 • 1.949 4.649 2.6X 7.009 9.758 19.663
Meetings and evens S 143 3 )Sl 223 1.960 2.1X 2.334 2.617
Soard of dfrecton - 2.067 . 2.06/ 2.067 4.2X
Interpreter • 298 2X 658 658 954 2.257
Meals and enlertalnmeni • 493 493 206 76 264 777 771

Total lurKttior.al expenses 2021 S 12.230.587 i  3.076.837 S  1X866 S 15417 2M $  1.033.521 S  XV231 i 2-234.752 $ 17652.042

'out furwiiorol expsrtset 2020 ^5_^j7fl,0g^ ^ 105.176

Sea Notes to Financial Statemonls

S



GRANITE STATF INOFPENDFMT I mUG

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021 AND 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash and restricted cash from operating activities:

Depreciation

(Gain) loss on sale of property
Realized (gain) loss on investments
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments
Restricted contributions

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expense
Increase (decrease) in liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Sales (purchases) of investments, net
Proceeds from sale of properly
Purchase of property and equipment

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from restricted contributions

Payments of contracts payable

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CHANGE IN CASH. CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH. END OF YEAR

2021 2020

$  995,912 :&  712,745

171,909 219,619

28,241 (17,200)
(34,344) 21,706

(88,477) (49.672)
(1,300) (845)

(2,174,348) (197,173)
51,890 233.710

(171,250) 188,664

(482,754) 143,287

(158,373) (73,874)
(19,391) 166,390

(1,882,285) 1,347,357

(19,434) 7,237

129,604 17,200

(69,603) (218,178)

40,567 (193,741)

1,300 845

(7,288) (7,950)

(5,988) (7,105)

(1,847,706) 1,146,511

4,699,058 3,552,547

$  2,851,352 $  4,699,058

See Notes to Financial Statements
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021 AND 2020

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Granite State Independent Living (the Organization) is a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation providing a wide range of services to improve the quality of life for individuals
with disabilities in New Hampshire. This is accomplished through ensuring the availability
of a broad range of services, advocacy efforts, and the establishment of social support.
The Organization impacts lives through two primary service areas;

Long-Term Care Program. The Organization offers a variety of personal care service
programs based on eligibility. Persona! care attendants provide non-medical, hands-on
assistance with activities of daily living for seniors and adults living with disabilities. A
personal care worker helps individuals bathe, dress, eat. and navigate a range of other
daily tasks. In addition to providing assistance with activities of daily living, personal care
workers can assist with housekeeping chores, meal preparation, and medication
management. Personal care services can be delivered in either a private home, residential
care setting, or an individual's place of employment. The Organization also provides
nursing facility transition services.

Community Economic Development Program. The Organization is committed to
assisting seniors and consumers with disabilities so they can function well within their
community and pursue personal goals, whether through employment or earning academic
credit through youth transition programs. Options are discussed through a call to
Information & Referral Program Service Coordinators, who help individuals set their goals.
Sen/ices provided can include benefit planning, transportation, ASL referral, peer support,
and access modification. Additional services offered may include placement, job coaching,
and employment through the Ticket to Work Program.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the Organization to
report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following
net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of
the Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion the Organization's
management and board of directors.



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021 AND 2020

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be
met by actions of the Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities.

As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, there were donor restricted net assets of $228,699
and $231,429, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months or
less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes, are
considered to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash and highly liquid financial instruments
restricted for permanent endowment or other long-term purposes are excluded from this
definition.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported within
the statement of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of cash flows
as of September 30, and is comprised of the following components;

2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,817,201 $ 4,692.672
Restricted cash 34.151 6.386

Total cash $ 2.851.352 S 4.699.058

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing accounts due for services
and programs. The allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable is based on
historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions and a review of
subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Revenue Is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments under cost-
reimbursement contracts received in advance are deferred to the applicable period in
which the related services are performed or expenditures are incurred, respectively.



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIViNG

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021 AND 2020

Investments

The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily determinabie
fair values and all investments in debt securities at their fair values in the Statement of

Financial Position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets
in the accompanying Statement of Activities.

Property and Depreciation

Property and Equipment additions over $1,000 are recorded at cost, if purchased, or if
donated, at estimated fair value on the date received. Material assets with a useful life in

excess of one year are capitalized. Depreciation is provided for using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows, or in the case of
capitalized leased assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser of the useful life or the
asset or the lease term:

Buildings 40 years
Leasehold improvements 5 to 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 5 years
Vehicles 5 years

Costs for repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred and betterments are
capitalized. Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along
with the related accumulated depreciation and any gain or loss is recognized.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be
recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to result for its use and
eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment loss is recognized to the
extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset
impairment for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values for its financial
instruments. The Organization's financial instruments consist of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable,
accrued payroll and related liabilities, accrued expenses and deferred revenue. The
carrying value for all such instruments, considering the terms, approximates fair value at
September 30, 2021 and 2020. The fair values of investments are measured using a fair
value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values (see Note
10).



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021 AND 2020

Contributions

Contributions are recognized when received. All contributions are reported as increases in
net assets without donor restrictions unless use of the contributed asset is specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor to use in future
periods or for specific purposes are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. Unconditional promises with payments due in future years have an implied
restriction to be used In the year the payment is due and. therefore are reported as net
assets with donor restrictions until the payment is due unless the contribution is clearly
intended to support activities of the current fiscal year. Conditional promises, such as
matching grants, are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is, until all
conditions on which they depend are substantially met.

Gifts-In-Kind Contributions

The Organization periodically receives contributions in a form other than cash or
investments. Contributed property and equipment is recognized as an asset at its
estimated fair value at the date of gift, provided that the value of the asset and its
estimated useful life meets the Organization's capitalization policy. Donated use of
facilities is reported as contributions and as expenses at the estimated fair value of similar
space for rent under similar conditions. If the use of the space is promised unconditionally
for a period greater than one year, the amount is reported as a contribution and an
unconditional promise to give at the date of gift, and the expense is reported over the term
of use. Donated supplies are recorded as contributions at the date of gift and as expenses
when the donated items are placed into service or distributed.

The Organization benefits from personal services provided by a substantial number of
volunteers. Those volunteers have donated significant amounts of time and services in the
Organization's program operations and in its fundraising campaigns. However, the
majority of the contributed services do not meet the criteria for recognition in the financial
statements. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles allow recognition of contributed
services only if (a) the services create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) the services
would have been purchased if not provided by contribution, require specialized skills, and
are provided by individuals possessing those skills.

Grant Revenue

Grant revenue is recognized when qualifying costs are incurred for cost-reimbursement
grants or contracts or when a unit of sen/ice is provided for performance grants. Grant
revenue from federal agencies is subject to independent audit under the Office of
Management and Budget's, Uniform Guidance, and review by grantor agencies. The
review could result in the disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the grant or
reductions of future grant funds. Based on prior experience, the Organization's
management believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if any, would not materially affect
the financial position of the Organization.

10



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021 AND 2020

Summarized Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in
total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction
with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2020, from
which the summarized information was derived.

Accrued Earned Time

The Organization has accrued a liability for future compensated leave time that its
employees have earned and which is vested with the employee. Accrued earned time
amounted to $169,733 and $190,007 at September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are reported in the Statement of Activities
and Statement of Functional Expenses.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and qualifies for charitable contributions deductions. The Internal
Revenue Service has determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation
within the meaning of Section 501 (a).

The Organization is required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Taxes
(Form 990) with the IRS. In addition, the Organization is subject to income tax on net
income that is derived from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt purpose. In
fiscal year 2021, the Organization was not subject to unrelated business income tax and
did not file an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return (Form 990-T) with the
IRS.

Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded that the
Organization has maintained its tax-exempt status and has taken no uncertain tax
positions that would require adjustment to the financial statements. The Organization is
subject to income tax examinations by the United States Federal or State tax authorities
for three years.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles requires estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and those
differences could be material.

11



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021 AND 2020

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various services and other activities have been summarized on
a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature, such as salaries, rent,
supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified by the type of activity for which expenses
are incurred, such as management and general and direct program costs. Expenses are
allocated by function using a reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based
on function and use. Expenses that relate solely to the functional categories are directly
charged, however, there are certain expenses that are allocated. Personnel expenses,
including salaries and wages, employee benefits, and payroll taxes, are allocated based
on time and effort estimates. Building occupancy costs are allocated on a square footage
basis.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial institutions believed
to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed insured limits or include
uninsured investment in money market funds. To date, no losses have been experienced
in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated with receivables is considered to be limited
due to high historical collection rates and because substantial portions of the outstanding
amounts are due from governmental agencies supportive of the Organization's mission.
Investments are made by diversified investment managers whose performance is
monitored by the Fiscal Committee of the Board of Directors. Although the fair values of
investments are subject to fluctuation on a year to year basis, the Fiscal Committee
believes that the investment policies and guidelines are prudent for the long-term welfare
of the Organization.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09 (Topic 606) - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. The ASU and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced the existing
revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP. The ASU also requires expanded
disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue from cash
flows arising from contracts with customers. The Organization adopted the new
standard effective October 1, 2020, the first day of the Organization's fiscal year using
the modified retrospective approach. The adoption did not result in a change to the
accounting for any of the applicable revenue streams; as such, no cumulative effect
adjustment was recorded.

Revenue Recognition Policv

The Organization derives revenue primarily from services provided to their clients.
Service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects consideration to which the
Organization expects to be entitled in exchange for providing services. These amounts
are due from clients and third-party payers. Revenue is recognized as performance
obligations are satisfied.

12



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021 AND 2020

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided
by the Organization and the contract with the client or third-party and are satisfied when
the service is performed.

The Organization determines the transaction price based on standard charges for
goods and services provided as well as the state contract rate with third-party payers.

Performance Obligations and Contracts Assets and Liabilities

The performance obligations related to the services provided for the Organization are
satisfied at a point in time. Revenue from performance obligations satisfied at a point in
time consist of contracts with the client or third-party. Contract liabilities at September
30, 2021 and 2020 were $298,018 and $317,409, respectively.

2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of September 30:

2021 2020

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,817,201 $ 4,692,672
Accounts receivable, net 3,876,814 1,702,466
Investments 1.167.570 1.025.315

Total financial assets 7.861.585 7.420.453

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions:

Time and purpose restrictions not expected
to be met in less than one year (30,912) (34,942)
Perpetual endowment (197.787) (196.487)

Total amount not available within one year (228,699) (231.429)

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months $ 7.632.886 $ 7.189.024

Endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowments. Income from donor-restricted

endowments is available for general use. The portion of endowment funds that are
perpetual in nature are not available for general expenditure.
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021 AND 2020

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and
other contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its
available funds. In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over
the next year, the Organization operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting
sufficient revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted
resources.

As part of the liquidity management plan, the Organization also has a $1,000,000
revolving line of credit available to meet cash flow needs. See Note 7.

3. RESTRICTED CASH

The Organization is the fiscal sponsor for Transport NH, an advocacy organization
currently seeking exempt status as an organization described in IRC Section 501(c)(3).

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consist of the following at September 30, 2021:

Accounts

Receivable Allowance Net

Medicaid $ 936,400 $ - $ 936,400
Title VII 37,171 - 37,171
Other 2.973,486 (70,243) 2.903.243

Total $ 3.947.057 $ (70.243) £ 3,876.814

Accounts receivable consist of the following at September 30, 2020:

Receivable Allowance Net

Medicaid $ 774.234 $ - $ 774,234
Other 965,725 (37.493) 928,232

Total S 1.739.959 £ (37.493) £ 1,702,466
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021 AND 2020

5. INVESTMENTS

The following is a summary of investments at September 30:
2021

Unrealized

Fair Value Cost Gain (Loss)

Exchange-traded funds $  136,074 $ 93,306 $  42,768
Mutual funds 195.627 155,278 40,349

U.S. Treasury obligations 99,159 100,000 (841)
U.S. Corporate bonds 441,230 439,010 2,220

Convertible bonds 20,205 20,812 (607)
U.S. Common stock 275.275 190.500 84.775

Total $ 1.167.570 $ 998.906

2020

Unrealized

Fair Value Cost Gain (Loss)

Exchange-traded funds $  120,524 $ 115,405 $  5,119

Mutual funds 167,172 144,129 23,043

U.S. Treasury obligations 95,264 95,125 139

U.S. Corporate bonds 399,202 389,572 9,630

U.S. Common stock 243.153 202,317 40,836

Total £ 1.025.315 $ 946.548 $  78.767

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the market interest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of the investment, the
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.

The Organization's investment policy states that not more than 10% (at cost) of the
investment portfolio may be invested in the securities of any one issue, with the exception
of the U.S. Government or its agencies. The maximum amount invested in the securities of
issuers in the sarne industry shall not be more than 25% (at cost) of the portfolio.
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021 AND 2020

Components of investment return:

2021 2020

Interest and dividends $ 24,942 $ 26,570

Investment fees (12,138) (10,823)
Gain - unrealized 88,477 49,672

Gain (loss) -realized 34.344 (21.706)

Total investment return $ 135.625 S 43.713

6. PROPERTY. EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
Property, equipment, and vehicles consisted of the follov/ing as of September 30;

2021 2020

Land $  69,198 $  69,198

Buildings and Improvements 1,171,061 1,473,974
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 1,045,689 1,045,689
Work in Process 54,254 -

Vehicles 632,525 632,525

2,972,727 3,221,386
Less accumulated depreciation (2,267.011) (2,255,519)

Property and equipment, net $  705.716 $  965.867

Depreciation expense for the years ended September 30. 2021 and 2020 was $171,909
and $219,619 respectively.

7. BANK LINE OF CREDIT
The Organization has a $1,000,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank,
secured by all assets. Borrowings under the line bear interest at the bank's LIBOR
Advantage rate plus 3.50%, with a floor of 5.00%, adjusted monthly. Interest only
payments are required monthly with the principal payable on demand. At September 30,
2021 and 2020, the Organization had no outstanding balance on the line of credit and did
not draw on the line during fiscal year 2021.

8- CONTRACTS PAYABLE
During fiscal year 2016, the Organization entered into a lease agreement for a new
Nashua office location. The Organization was required to make leasehold
improvements which were paid in full by the lessor. As part of the terms of the
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021 AND 2020

agreement, the Organization is required to pay the lessor $663 per month, In addition to
the base rent, for the improvements performed by the lessor. At September 30, 2020
the outstanding balance was $7,288. The balance was paid in full during the year ended
September 30, 2021.

9. ENDOWMENT FUNDS

The Organization's endowment consists of individual funds established by donors to
provide funding for specific activities and general operations. New Assets associated
with endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of
donor-imposed restrictions.

The Board of Directors has interpreted the New Hampshire Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the
fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds,
unless there are explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. At September 30, 2021, there
were no such donor stipulations. As a result of this interpretation, net assets with donor
restrictions are classified as (a) the original value of gifts donated to the endowment, (b)
the original value of subsequent gifts donated to the endowment (including contributions
receivable net of discount and allowance for doubtful accounts), and (c) accumulations
to the endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift
instrument at the time the accumulation is added. Donor restricted amounts not retained

in perpetuity are subject to appropriation for expenditure by the Organization in a
manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. The following
factors were considered in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-
restricted endowment funds;

•  The duration and preservation of the fund.
•  The purposes of the Organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund.

•  General economic conditions.

•  The possible effect of inflation and deflation.
•  The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments.
• Other resources of the Organization.
•  The investment policies of the Organization.

investment and Spending Policies

The Organization has adopted investment and spending policies for the
investment funds that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding for
operations while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the investment
assets. Over time, long term rates of return should be equal to an amount
sufficient to maintain the purchasing power of the investment assets, to provide
the necessary capital to fund the spending policy, and to cover the costs of
managing the investment funds. The target minimum rate of return is the
Consumer Price Index plus 5% on an annual basis. Actual returns in any given
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021 AND 2020

year may vary from this amount. To satisfy this long-term rate-of-return objective,
the investment portfolio is structured on a total-return approach through which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and
unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends). A significant portion of the
funds are invested to seek growth of principal over time or unless the
Organization needs to access for immediate need, with Board approval.

The investment fund spending-rate formula is used to determine the maximum
amount to spend from the investment fund each year. The rate, determined and
adjusted from time to time by the Board of Directors, is applied to the average fair
value of the investment fund investments for the prior 12 quarters at December
31 of each year to determine the spending amount for the upcoming year. In
establishing this policy, the long-term expected return on the investment fund
was considered, the rate set with the objective of maintaining the purchasing
power of the investment fund over time.

Funds with Deficiencies

Due to market conditions, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor

restricted endowment funds may fail below the level that the donor or UPMIFA
requires the Organization to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. There were no
deficiencies at September 30, 2021 and 2020.

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended September 30, 2021 are as
follows:

Perpetual
Endowment

Endowment net assets, beginning of year $ 196,487
Contributions 1.300

Endowment net assets, end of year £ 197.787

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended September 30. 2020 are as
follows:

Perpetual
Endowment

Endowment net assets, beginning of year $ 195,642

Contributions 845

Endowment net assets, end of year 1- 196.487
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021 AND 2020

10. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB Accounting Standard Codification 820 "Fair Value Measurements" provides a
definition of fair value v/hich focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price,
establishes a framework in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair
value which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-
specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair value
measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC 620, the Organization may use valuation
techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches to measure fair value.
As a basis for considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements,
ASC Topic 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in
measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the highest priority of Level 1 measurements
and the lowest priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy under ASC Topic 820 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to valuation methodology are quoted prices available in active
markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of
the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of models or
other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and the
reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of the
asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets at fair
value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at September 30, 2021.

Government obligations: Valued using pricing models maximizing the use of
observable inputs for similar securities.

Non-government obligations: Consist of corporate bonds that are valued using
pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs for similar securities.
This includes basing value on yields currently available on comparable securities
of issuers with similar credit ratings.

Common stocks: Valued at the closing market price on the stock exchange
where they are traded (primarily the New York Stock Exchange).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021 AND 2020

Mutual funds and Exchange traded funds: All actively traded mutual funds and
exchange traded funds are valued at the daily closing price as reported by the
fund. These funds are required to publish their daily net asset value (NAV) and
to transact at that price. All mutual funds and exchange traded funds held by the
Organization are open-end mutual funds that are registered with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Exchange traded funds
Mutual funds

U.S. Treasury obligations
U.S. Corporate bonds
Convertible bonds

U.S. Common stock

$  136.074 $
195,627 •

275.275

99,159

441,230

20,205

136,074

195,627

99,159

441.230

20,205

275.275

Total investments S 606.976 $ 560.594 £ S 1.167.570

2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Exchange traded funds
Mutual funds

U.S. Treasury obligations
U.S. Corporate bonds
U.S. Common stock

$  120,524
167,172

243,153

95,264

399,202

120,524
167,172

95.264

399,202
243,153

Total investments S 530.849 S 494.466
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021 AND 2020

11. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTION

Net assets with donor restrictions are comprised of the following at September 30. 2021
and 2020;

2021 2020

Time and purpose restricted

Access modification program $  7,045 $  10,396
Advocacy, activities 5,661 5,661
Community economic development program 6,790 6,790
IMPACCT program 11.416 12.095

Total time and purpose restricted 30,912 34,942

Perpetual endowment 197.787 196.487

Total

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose or the occurrence of the passage of time as follows for the years ended
September 30, 2021 and 2020:

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Access modification program
IMPACCT program

Total time and purpose restricted

2021

6,814

679

2020

18,016

221

7.493 £ 18 237

12. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization provides a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section 403(b) of
the Internal Revenue Code. Ail salaried employees working 30 or more hours a week and
are 21 years of age or older may participate in the plan. The Organization matches up to
100% of employee contributions to the plan, to a maximum of 6% of salaries, depending
on the years of service. The Organization contributed $92,363 and $82,171 for the years
ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

13. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases office space under the terms of non-cancellable lease
agreements that are scheduled to expire at various times through 2024. The Organization
also rents additional facilities on a month to month basis. Rent expense under these
agreements, which is included in building occupancy in the Statement of Functional
Expenses, totaled $190,307 and $173,090 for the years ended September 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

21



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The Organization also leases office equipment under non-cancellable lease agreements
that are scheduled to expire at various times through 2022. Equipment rental expense,
which is included in equipment lease and maintenance in the Statement of Functional
Expenses, totaled $36,364 and $45,715 for the years ended September 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

Estimated future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows:

Year Ending
September 30 Amount

2022 $ 169,845
2023 112,514
2024 103,368
2025 37,539
2026 29.025

Total

14. CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK

A material part of the Organization's revenue is dependent upon government sources, the
loss of which would have a materially adverse effect on the Organization. During the years
ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, Medicaid accounted for 72% and 70%,
respectively, of total revenues and 24% and 46%, respectively, of total accounts
receivable. The State of New Hampshire contracts with managed care organizations to
reimburse the Organization as a provider of services rendered.

15. LONG TERM CARE STABILIZATION PROGRAM

In response to COVID-19, in April 2020, the State of New Hampshire established the Long
Term Care Stabilization (LTCS) Program to provide stipends to certain front line Medicaid
providers. The program was developed to incentivize these direct care workers to remain
in or rejoin this critical workforce and continue to provide high quality care to vulnerable
persons during the pandemic. Under the program, the New Hampshire Department of
Employment Security (NHES) would distribute $300 per week in stipends to eligible full
time front line workers and $150 per week in stipends to eligible part time front line
workers. The funding for the LTCS Program was provided through the Coronavirus Relief
Fund. During the year ended September 30, 2021, the Organization received grant
revenue of $455,100 and expended $455,100 under the grant through payroll and fees for
service. During the year ended September 30, 2020, the Organization received grant
revenue of $1,123,800 and expended $1,123,800 under the grant through payroll and fees
for service.
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16. RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were reclassified
to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

17. OTHER MATTERS

The impact of the novel coronavirus {COVID-19) and measures to prevent its spread are
affecting the Organization. The significance of the impact of these disruptions, including
the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's financial and operational results,
will be dictated by the length of time that such disruptions continue and. in turn, will
depend on the currently unknowable duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact
of governmental regulations that might be imposed in response to the pandemic. As of
December 23, 2022, due to the measures put in place to prevent the spread of COVID-19
we are unable to estimate the future performance of the Organization.

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, including the
estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Nonrecognized
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist
at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has
evaluated subsequent events through December 23, 2022, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

23



GRANITE STATE INDEPENOENT LIVING

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/

PROGRAM TITLE

FEDERAL

ASSISTANCE

LISTING

NUMBER

PASS

THROUGH

GRANTOR

NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURES

U.S. DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Admlnisiration for Communltv LIvino

ACL Centers for Independent Living
COVlO-19 - ACL Centers for Independent Living

Arimlnisiraiion tor Communitv Livfnc

Passed through Slate of NH Deparlmenl of Education

ACL Centers for Independent (Jvfng • State Grants

93,432

93.432

93.369 1056890

S 973.814
499.560

1,473,374

123 701

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services s 1.597.075

U .S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Passed through Governor's Office of Emergency Relief and Recovery
COVID-19 Lortg Term Care Stabilization Program
Coronavlrus Relief Eund 21.019 s 455,100

Total U.S. Department of the Treasury s 455,100

SOCIAL SECURITY ADMINISTRATION

Social Security • Work Incentives Planning and Assistarxte Program 96.008 s 281.665

Passed through MaineHaalth dba Maine Medical Center
Social Security • Woik Incentives Planning and Assistance Program 96.006 21,850

Total Social Security Administration s 303,515

PASSED

TO

SUBRECIPIENTS

Total expenditures of federal awards S  2.355.690 S

59.598

59,596

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

24



GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Granite State Independent Living under
programs of the federal government for the year ended September 30. 2021. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Granite State Independent Living, it is not intended to and does
not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the
Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PGHCIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Granite State Independent Living has elected not to use the ten percent de
minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 DONATED PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT (UNAUDITED)

Granite State Independent Living received the fair market value of personal
protective equipment of $2,500.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Granite State Independent Living

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Granite State Independent Living (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization),
which comprise the statement of financial position as of September 30, 2021, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December
23, 2022.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements, we considered Granite State
Independent Living's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Granite State Independent Living's internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite State Independent Living's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or. detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audits we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compiiance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Granite State Independent Living's
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compiiance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication Is not suitable
for any other purpose.

oturnt Tfl.cJbo'ruitli 4^ '^crLtrct^u (X^^urcl-cctLcrn^

Dover, New Hampshire
December 23, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Granite State Independent Living

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Granite State Independent Living's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of Granite State Independent Living's major federal programs for the
year ended September 30, 2021. Granite State Independent Living's major federal programs
are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Granite State
Independent Living's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirement, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Granite State Independent Living's compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Granite
State Independent Living's compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Granite State Independent Living complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Granite State independent Living is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered Granite State Independent Living's internal control over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite State Independent Living's
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

TTl^cha-rutM 4^ ^crtx-i/U^

Dover, New Hampshire
December 23, 2022
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS* RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial
statements of Granite State Independent Living were prepared in accordance with
GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No
material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Granite State
Independent Living, which would be required to be reported in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by Uniform Guidance.
No material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for
Granite State Independent Living expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2
CFR 200.516(a).

7. The program tested as a major program was: U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, ACL Centers for Independent Living, ALN 93.432.

8. The threshold for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Granite State Independent Living was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT

None
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GRANITE STATE INDEPENDENT LIVING

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2021

There were no findings or questioned costs that were required to be reported in the Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended September 30. 2020.
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KEY PERSONNEL

NH Department of Education

Contractor Name: Granite State Independent Living

Name of Program: IMPACCT

BUDGET PERIOD:

NAME^ "'V'.

i:

JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

SALARY

PERCENT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

SFY2026 SFY2027 SFY2028

9/1/2025-

6/30/2026

7/1/2026 ■

6/30/2027

7/1/2027 -

8/31/2027 r
Marda Baqley Chief Program Officer S145.335 15% $18,167 $21,800 $3,633
Brianna Smith Director of Education Sen/ices $75,770 80% $50,514 $60,618 $10,101
Debbie Cortes Manager of Education Services $65,878 65% $35,684 $42,821 $7,137

Kelly Jones Lead Transition Specialist $52,874 95% S41.859 $50,230 $8,372
Amanda Chase Lead Transition Specialist $55,847 95% $44,212 $53,055 $8,842
Denise Neskorik Lead Transition Specialist $51,832 95% $41,034 $49,240 $8,207
Cheyenne Gabo Lead Transition Specialist $49,450 95% $39,148 $46,978 $7,830:
Meqan Ballard Lead Transition Specialist $51,253 95% $40,575 $48,690 $8,115
Nicole LeBrun Transition Specialist $45,332 95% $35,888 $43,065 $7,178
Sarahjane Irizarry Transition Specialist $49,881 95% $39,489 $47,387 $7,898
April Paye Transition Specialist $46,405 95% $36,737 $44,085 $7,347
Linda Beilveau Transition Specialist $46,804 95% $37,053 $44,464 $7.411
Haylee McClintock Transition Specialist $45,332 95% $35,888 $43,065 $7,178
Valerie Kidder Transition Specialist • floater $7,594 80% $5,063 $6,075 $1,013

TOTAL SALARIES RAID FROM THIS CONTRACT $501,311 $601,573 $100,262



Marcia Bagley

Griinire State Independent Living (GSIL), Concord, NH - Chief
Program Officer
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2016-2018 / Preschool Coordinator 2007 - 2016
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Award, 2003

Donald K. Pnbush Dedication

Award. 2001
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The Birchtree Center, Portsmouth, NH— Special Education
Case Coordinator
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Shcppard Pratt - The Forbush School, Temple Hills, MD—
Specio/ Education Teacher
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McDaniel College, Westminster, MD — Master's ofSder\ce
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Objective:

1o obloin a position within the field of employment and education that will enhance

professional growth and utilize strong organizational and interpersonal skills.

Experience:

Director of Education Services- February, 2023 - Present
Granite State Independent Living • Monchester. NH

•  Oversee our education team throughout New Hampshire in implementing
Pre-Employment Transition Services

Collaborotes with New Hampshire Vocationol Rehabilitation in ensuring
sustainable funding for both IMPACCT and Earn end Learn Opportunities

Program

•  Lead consultant tor managing tederol Department of Health and Human

Services Independent Living funding. Department of Lobor regulations and WlOA

grant compliance and reporting

•  Fccilitote regional stakeholder advisory boards throughout the state with the

Department of Educolion, school partners and employers to provide technicol

assistance for program growth end advancement

•  Collaborate with the Community College System of New Hampshire and

negotiate to offer career pothwoys and occupotionol troining through post
secondary education

•  Responsible for recruitment, hiring and supervising all stoff member throughout
New Hampshire which also includes focililafing quarterly professional

development seminars

Associate Director of Education Services' May, 2018 - Februory. 2023
Granite State Independent Living ■ Monchesler. MM

•  Oversee our education team in the Manchester area in implementing

Pre-EiTipioyment Transition Services



•  Leod consuilani for managing federal Department of Health and Human

Services Independent Living funding. Department of Labor regulations ond wiOA

grant compliance and reporting

'  Facilitate regional stakeholder advisory boards in the Manchester orea with the

Department of Educotion, school partners and employers to provide technical

assistance for program growth and advancement

•  Collaborate with Manchester Community College to offer career pothwoys and

occupational training through post secondary education

•  Responsible for recruitment, hiring and supervising four staff members in

Manchester programs which also includes facilitating quarterly professional

development seminors

•  Manage and develop susfoinoble business partnerships for employment

opportunities

Lead Transition Specialist- June, 2016- May, 2018

Granite Stote Independent Living • Monchesfer, f'«tH

•  Responsible for doily instruction of Pre-Employment Tronsition Services for

underserved youth in New Hampshire's largest city

•  Oversee prograr-riming in developing paid work experiences tor students and

families

•  Conduct monthly stakeholder advisory board to refine programming

•  Lead liaison for the foster grandporent program to bridge employment services in

creoting on organic approach for purposeful relationships

•  Delivered wraparound services for the foster grandparent program and students

through the provision of Independent Living services

Transition Specialist- June, 2015- June, 2016

Granite State Independent Living- Manchester, NH

•  Provided vocationol classroom instruction to youth between the ages of 16-21 to

earn high schoo' occdemic credit and employment pothwoys skills

•  Responsible for student recruitment with area high schools

•  Developed employmenf opportunities for individuals to gain paid employment

•  Built relationships with community portners for students to experience internships

ond access local resources



School Program Teem Leader-June, 2009 - June, 20)5

Work Opportunities Unlimited • Manchester. NH

•  Counseling individuols to provide education and vocational guidance

•  Providing skills, travel training and direct support for students within the program

•  Assist in working with team on transitioning students out of high school by

counseling with community resources end the school district

•  Develop lEP goals to conduct transition plan for future pathways

"  Responsible for team members daily schedule, job objectives and activities for all

students in school program

Teactier Assistant ̂ August 2007-January 2008
,^'pha 6its Learning Ce-ntef Manchester, NH

Assisted with planning daily routines for the preschool classroom

Develop lesson plans for children's goals including intellectual stimulation and

longuage activities

Praised chiidren for accomplishments along with guidance in learning.

Skills:

Lead consultont in creating programming in school districts and businesses throughout

Mew Hampshire

•  Spearf-teod federal, stote ond foundation grant management that includes reporting

and compliance responsibilities

Assist with onboording. managing and overseeing

assisting with staffs day to day operations

numerous team members and

Reliable, hard working individual contributor and team player

Highly organized with an person centered approach

Stiong Communication skills with employers, area agencies and school districts

Create lesson plans for students ond guide with goals and objectives reloted to lEPs

Proficient in Microsoft Office, XP. Excel. Powerpoint along with Mac OS and Google

Plottorms



Education:

Scuihern New Hampshire University

June 2009 Completion

Social Science, Bachelor's Degree

Psychology, Minor Degree

References Available Upon Request



Debbie Cortes

Professional Summary
Adaptable, crcnlive, and focused educator with demonstrated success in managing organized classrooms, updating records,
?0{J providing both group and individualized instruction. Proficient in helping advanced, struggling, and special needs students
enhar.:e le-armng.

Skills

»  t-.lfectivL' communication skills • Self-motivated professional
♦  Detail-oriented « Differentiated Instruction

♦  Bilingual {C-nglisn/Spanish) • Proficient with Microsoft, Google, and Virtual
♦  Student counseling Meeting Platforms

Work History

fVlanager of Education Services July 2023 to Present
Granite State Independent Living Manchester, N'H

•  Supervise IMPACCT and Earn and Learn staff across the state.

«' Establish and maintain relationships with school districts, community partners across the state that are essential

for progrom success.

•  Train new tran.sition staff in the GSIL model to work with at-risk students with disabilities.

lead Transition Specialist Nov 2021 - July 2023
Granite State Independent Living Manchester, NH
•  Continue previous responsibilities in the Manchester Earn and Learn Opportunities Program.
•  Vvork alongside Transition Specialist to maintain program and student expectations.

•  Co.iiplete all necessary paperwork and program reports with high quality and in a timely manner.

Career Services Manager Sept 2021-Nov 2021
More than Words Newton, MA
•  Sur.'potted at risk and court involved youth from the ages of 16-24 to explore and establish careers in their chosen

fields.

• Worked with graduates of the program to establish and maintain educational and career goals.
•  Coacned youth approaching graduation on career readiness skills through workshops and their work in the

bcokstore.

lead Transition Specialist jan 2019 - Sept 2021
Granite State Independent Living Nashua, NH
•  Previous responsibilities in addition to planning and implementing different daily activities to enhance overall

development and growth of every student in the areas of career exploration, career training, post-secondary
education, and independent living.

•  Networking with professionals in the communily and building relationships to establish resources, work
expei iem es and future job opportunitie.s for students.

Transition Specialist Mar 2018 • Jan 2019

Granite State Independent Living Nashua, MH
• Maintained relationships built in previous position to recruit students into the academy.
• Collaborated wit.". Load 1 ransiiion Specialist to foster a positive and professional classroom environment while

maintai.Ting learning development goals.

• Provided a warm, supportive environment for developing academic, social, and emotional growth.
Trensltion Coordinator Aug 2017 - Mar 2018
Granite State Independent Living Nashua, NH
• Ccliaboratcd wiih school staff from different districts to provide effective transition planning to high school students.
• Educated students on. available resources including educational materials, videos and online sites regarding career

planning, disabilities, and post-secondary training opportunities.
• Assisted individuals with addressing disabilities and developing career plans.

Paraprofcsslonal Oct 2014-Jul 2016

Nashua School District Nashua, NH



• 'Vjs;',t.>d teacheis with classroom management and document coordination to maintain a positive learning
environment.

• Maintained an inclusive learning iavironmenl to enable students to gain maximum benefit from lessons.
• S'.ippoi'ied middle school students with language barriers and disabilities.

Residemial Manager jan 2013 - Oct 2014

Toward Independent Living and Learning, INC Nashua, NH
• Manjj^^d, scheduled, nnd determined workload for staff in a residential home for adults with disabilities.

o Ooviseri and iirpleriienteo patient and resident care plans, including recreational activities, policies, and procedures,
"iversaw staff devoiopnreiu throu.c;h in-depth training, workshops, seminars, and other learning opportunities,

£dLcation

3achelor of Arts, Fducation Studios in Elementary Education and Special Education

Wectern Governer's University September 2023

Associates Degree: Educator Preparation May 2017
Nashua Community College Nashua, NH
• Member of Educators Rising vClub

Certification

•  Youth Development Practitioner

• Google Educator Level 1



Kelly Jones

Objective

Dedicated and experienced Transition Specialist with over 20 years in the special education field. Skilled
in mentofinp and guiding young individuals to achieve their high school diplomas and develop essential
career skills. Seeking to continue making a meaningful impact by empowering students to become self-
sufhcient and active contributors to their communities.

Skills

•  Career coaching artd skill development

•  Curriculum design and program implementation

•  Strong interpersonal and communication skills

•  Familiarity with digital platforms {e.g., Google Classroom, Google Docs, Google Slides)

•  Netv/orking and relationship building with community organizations

•  Empathy, adaptability, and conflict resolution

Professional Experie-nce

Lead Transition Specialist

Granite State independent Living, Nashua IMPACCT Program - Nashua, NH
May 2022 - Present

•  Develop and implement personalized plans to support students in achieving their educational
and career goals.

•  Foster career readiness through resume building, interview preparation, and workplace skill
development.

•  Cocrainate with local businesses to establish internship and employment opportunities for
students.

•  Organize educational activities, including workshops on personal finance, healthy relationships,
and deciiiion-making.

•  Monitor student progress toward earning Essential Learning Opportunity (ELD) credits In
multiple subjects.

Special education Professional

Milford H'gh School - Milford, NH

August 2003-May 2022

•  Provided direct support to students with diverse needs, fostering independence and academic
growth.



•  Coliaborated with families, educators, and specialists to develop and implement Individualized

education Plans (lEPs).

•  Designed and executed lessons on life skills, digital literacy, and career exploration.

•  Maintained detailed records of student progress and provided regular updates to stakeholders.

Education

Bachelor of Science Ir. Healthcare Management

Granite Slate College - Manchester. NH

May 2022

Associate of Science in Human Services

Mount Wachusert Community College - Gardner, MA

June • 1999



Amanda Chase

Objective: To make a career change in line with my experience and skills.

Education

Utah State University, M.S., 1997

M.S. Psychology with emphasis in school counseling
University of Vermont. B.A., 1991

Major: Psychology; Minor: English

Certification: New Hampshire k-12 Guidance Certification

Experience

1/19 - present Granite State Independent Living, Concord, NH

Lead Transition Coofdinator, IMPACCT Academy

• Teach students with disabilities various competency-based ELO topics, transition and
Iridependent Living skills

• Recruit and monitor business partners for student work-based learning and classroom
presentations

• Recruit students from and maintain year-round relationships with 12+ local school districts
• Create curriculum (Career Exploration. English, Health. Consumer Science, Personal Finance)
• Maintain accurate records on student achievement and convey to stakeholders
• Create progress notes for parents, schools and reporting, track student credits
• Facilitate monthly advisory board meetings

ommunicate with former students to track progress with goalsr

8/16-7/2018 John Stark Regional High School, Weare, NH
School-to-Career Coordinator

o Arranged and monitored students in job shadows, internships, work study, community service
experiences and recruited businesses for such activities

• Provided career counseling
• Secured guest speakers for groups of students during popular "Flex time" Career Speaker

Series

• Coordinated and supervised career-related field trips
• Taught workshops in career assessment, job acquisition and retention for high school students
• Contributing member of K-12 Counseling Curriculum Team and PLC Team
• Extra-curricular Involvement: Freshman Class Advisor; Official Home Basketball Bookkeeper



11/99-06/201B Kearsarge Regional High School, North Sutton, NH
School-to-Career Coordinator

• Arranged and monitored students in job shadows, internship, work study, community service
experiences and recruited businesses for such activities

» Planned and coordinated middle and high school career days
® Collaborated with 5 other high schools for annual Career Expo
• Communicated with business people regarding expectations for students in work-based

experiences

• Provided career guidance for students

• Concord Regional Technical Center program liaison
® Facilitated NH Scholars Program

• Taught career guidance course, classroom activities, summer school and KADP classes

• Extra-curricular Activities: Kyar-Sarga Yearbook Advisor

4/97-11/99 'Tween School'n Home, Hopkinton, NH

Director, After School Program

o Responsible for daily programming of activities.
Facilitated parent and staff meetings/training, hiring
Overali supervision of 50+ students aged 5-12 and 6 staff members

Communkty Involvement

2003-2012 Girl Scouts of the Green & White Mountains

Gir! Scout Leader

•* Guldod girls in grades 1-9 in self-esteem building activities through goal setting, fundraising
and community service

1 Planned trips and coordinated troop and town-wide camping weekends

2002-2015 Hopkinton PTA, Project Graduation Committee and Hopkinton Booster Club Secretary

2008-2011 Maple Street School Volunteer

• Created student yearbook "The Maple Leaflet"

« Organi7.ed students to work on book, taught photography/journalism basics to students
grades 4-6

References available upon request



Denise Neskorik

SKILLS it INTERESTS

•  Skills: StrongWofk Ethic, Extensive Problem Solving, Flexibility

•  Interests: Community building with youth

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Granite State Independent Living, Littleton, NH July 2023-Present

Lead Transition Specialist

•  Instructs daily academics for students

•  Supervise extended learning activities using community resources

•  Network/ Promote IMPACCT program to North Country

Self Employed/Uber. Humble. TX June 2015-June 2023

•  Provided exceptional customer service

•  Transported customers throughout the Houston Metro area

Ross Sterling Middle School, Humble, TX June 2020- April 2023
Tudo^

•  Identified specific skills for improvement

•  Developed and implemented a remedial plan to increase testing scores for at risk

students

ACAT, Conroe, TX September 2015-May 2017

Teacher

•  Instructed grade combined class

•  High School Choir Director, Health, and Computer class

•  Developed and implemented curriculum for HS Life Skills Class



Spring ISD, Spring, TX October 2003- June 2015

Ten her

Regular F-ducation and ELL Teacher (2"^ language learners)
3.d/5th gra(je classroom teacher for Language Arts/Social Studies

Social Studies District Representative

TRIBES Trainer for team building

Student Council Sponsor

Spelling Bee Coordinator

Microsoft Trainer for Education

Hiimls ISD, Humble. TX October 1998-June 2003

Teacher

•  Regular Education for and 4"^ grade students

Child Development Services US Army, Babenhausen, Germany 1996-August 1998

CDC Asst. Director

•  Scheduled and supervised 15-20 workers including cook, secretary and teachers

•  Maintained age-appropriate quality educational environment for children 3 months-

5 years

•  Implemented NAYAC certification procedures that resulted in an approval.

•  Managed daily running of center in all areas including paperwork, inspection and

finances

EDUCATION

Walla Walla College, College Place, WA 1993 & 2000

•  BS Degree in Speech Communication with an emphasis on public speaking

•  BA Degree in Elementary Education with a minor in Health

Portland Adventist Academy 1985-1987

•  Diploma with Leadership Honors



Cheyenne Gebo

OBJKCnVE

Seeking a role with sicady growth, in an environment where I can learn and be as effective, efficient,
and personable as possible.

VN ORK EXPKRIENCE

Ciranitc State Independent Living - Lead Transition Specialist
December 2024 - Present

•  Abide by all federal and company policies regarding student infonnation
•  Presenting lessons in a comprehensive manner using video/audio means to facilitate learning.
•  Schedule and complete interviews and registrations forms for student admissions
•  Create a training room cnvironrnent conducive to learning and encourages active participation
• Work with colleagues to facilitate a safe and supponive community that welcomes various

learning styles
•  Support students with documented disabilities, 504s and lEPs by adapting lessons to support

learning and understanding of key concepts

New Freedom Academy Behavioral Health - Recoverv Suppon Specialist
October 2022- 2024

Abide by all federal and local laws regarding patients protected health information
Observe and report Patient behaviors to the clinical and medical department.
Complete admissions as new clients arrive

Record Inventory log of all personal belongings, valuables
Perform admission paperwork and tests for every client
Search paitcnts' belongings and property to ensure safety and compliance
De-escalate violence and attempts to leave treatment

Southern New Hampshire Health, Nashua NH - May 2020 -- 2021
•  Provided a clean and orderly appearance keeping to hospital standards
• Assisted patients and dietitians with a safe and professional environment
• Maintairted a sanitary workspace at all times
• Kept confidential all patient infonnation in compliance with HIPAA regulations
• Created a calm and friendly rapport during all patient/visitor interactions

SKILLS

Critical thinking atid problem solving
nthical .and professional behavior
Muki-Agency Coordination
.\ttention '0 detail

Active listening
Time- Management
bMperienced with (joogle and Office suites, and familiarity with Quickbooks

EDLiCATIOX

New Hampshire Job Corps - Manchester NH - 2016 - 2017
•  HiSet and Hospitality

SNH'J - Manchester NH -2022 - Present



Megan Baliard

A byal, iTOdest. snd thoughtful contributor with Working Geniuses in wonder and enablement that strives to
suoport the needs and hest interest of youth.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Granite State Independent Living - IMPACCT Academy | Dover, NH
May 2023 - Present
Lead Transition Specialist
• Operating an ELD program teaching work-readiness training and life skills to 48 at-risk high school

students a year with disabilities.
• Cultivating and maintaining relationships with schools and families to best support student needs.
• Oeveiop program curriculum in conjunction with businesses and community partners.

Dover Middle School | Dover, NH
October 2021 - March 2023

Paraprofesslonaf
•  Provided educational and structural support in an autism classroom,
t  Followea lEP guidelines and tracked student progress data.
• Work alongside ABA professionals to support students' needs and safety.

Albacore Park | Portsmouth, NH
June 2022 - September 2022
Museum Educator

• Developed and implemented a robust schedule of 5 education programs.
» Trained staff of volunteers to run daily programming.
• Wrote lesson pians for current and future programming following state guidelines.
• Croaifi visually pleasing marketing materials for education programming.

Old North Church & Historic Site | Boston, MA
April 2018 - August 2020
Visitor Services & Sales Manager

9 Onboardlng and management of the Visitor Services team.
• Assist large groups and school groups create a memorable visit or plan events.
• Data Input, revenue reporting, website editing, donor retention, and invoicing.

Museum Educator

•  Led educational programming to upwards of 200 visitors daily about the history of the site.
• Historical analysis, program development, and first-person interpretation.
• Wore historically accurate clothing for a laborer in colonial New England.
• Retail and money handling in a gift shop setting.

''"he House of The Seven Gables ) Salem, MA
May 2C17-August 2013
Tour Guide

•  Edi.icational tours of the mansion to groups and school groups.
• The ability to memorize and provide information on the architectural, familial, and maritime history of

the site.

• Assist with ticket sales at the front desk and provide exemplary customer service.
Museum Intern

• Archival cataloging museum collections into PastPerfect.
• Social Media Management & sun/eying visitor experience.



Salom State University i Salem, MA
March 2015-May 2018
Admissions Ambassador Vice President

. • Provided campus tours to prospective students and their families.
• Hiring, scheduling, and training tour guide staff.
o Assisted with p'-cspective student applications by inputting/converting grades In the programs OnBase

and Peoplosoft.

Six Flags New England | Agawam, MA
April 2012-October 2016
Rides Team Lead

t  Supeivisory role that consisted of managing a staff of 30 employees each season.
• Operating therrie park rides and ensuring the safety and enjoyment of visitors.
f  Employee training, managing a break schedule, addressing concerns, and daily paperwork.

Community Leadership
Volunteer Tutor j Wakefteld, MA

December 2020 - June 2021

Tutored high school student's during virtual learning.
o  .Assisted youth wiln cultivating time management and organizational skills.

EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS

Salem State University j Salem, MA
Bachelor of Arts - Public History
Minor In Travel & Tourism

f^agna Cum Laude
LIfetimQ Membership - Phi Alpha Theta Historian's Honor Society

American Red Cross Heartsaver First Aid, CPR, AED Certification
Youth Mental Health First Aid Certification

LEAN White Belt Cerf/ffcaf/on

Positive Youth Development Training
Search Institute Training for Positive Youth Relationships & Igniting Sparks

Skills

Program Development i Student Support & Success i Relationship Cultivation

TECHNICAL PROFICIENCIES

Google Suite i Microsoft Office Suite i Outlook Applications



NICOLE LEBRUN

'Skill.? Summery

Works snd colloborales well wilh olhei s. friendly, experienced with customer service, active listening,
establishing rcpport. continuing education and training, strong communication skills.

Education

Piyinouth State University \ 2020-2C24

My f ducotional journey reflects a strong commitment to both academics and extracurricular activities,
demonstrating my ability to excel In multiple areas. The pursuit of a Bachelor of Social Work with a Minor
in Criminal .Justice exemplifies my dedication to making a positive impact on society. These experiences
nave helped to grow my leadership, time management, and problem-solving skills, making me a well-
rounded candidate with a strong foundation for a career in social work. During my time at Plymouth Slate
University. I have captained the Softball team, demonstrating strong leadership skills, fostering teamwork,
discipline, and dedication among team members. I have earned the College Sports Communicators
Academic AH- District Recognition by consistently maintaining a high level of academic excellence while
actively participating in sports and extracurricular activities. I have been recognized on the presidents list
for a semester, and the Dean's List for four semesters by demonstrating consistent dedication to
acedemic excellence and a strong work ethic throughout the academic journey.

Experienco

GSIL IMPACCT Academy

7'rdn.>:iion Specialist j December 2024 - Present \ Nashua, NH

As a Trans'tion Specialist I provide student support in the training room and at their weekly worksite. I
deliver standardized IMPACCT curriculum to students in the Academy, including instruction in work-
readiness. self-advocacy, goal-setting, and independent living. We work wilh community resources to
introduce students to potential career pathways and support services available to them. Maintaining and
completing necessary student recofds is essential to the program's functionality.

MVPT Physical Therapy

Paliar.t Care Cooroinaior \ August 2024'December 2024\ Manchester, NH

As a Patient Care Coordinator, my role includes many office tasks such as answering and making phone
calls for different matters. I speak with patients and their family members, and Insurance representatives
to provide patients v;ith a smooth and transparent transition to receiving treatment. Among a variety of
tasks this position requires, an important part is creating a comfortable environment for patients by
building connections with Individuals of all different ages and abilities.

Einstein's Bros. Bagels

Food Service \ July 202.1-August 2024 \ Concord. NH



In this role »worked to ensure efficient and safe food preparation, as wet! as great interpersonal skills, as I
engage wiih cusiomnrs to understand their preferences, dietary restrictions, and special requests. By
creating a personai connection with each customer. I enhance their dining experience, leaving a lasting
impiession of service and a commitment to exceeding their expectations,

Rite Aid

Cushi&r I February 202l-Jan(iHry 2022 { Plymouth/Concord, NH

As a cashier.) workea to provide great customer service by ensuring a welcoming atmosphere and
addressing inquiries and concerns with professionalism. My commitment to efficiency and accuracy in
handling t'ansactions enhanced customer satisfaction. In addition to my cashier duties, I took pride in my
lole as a store organizer and stocker. My attention to detail and dedication to maintaining a well-
orynnizec environment translated into a visually appealing and customer-friendly store layout.

Sal's PiiY.ii

Fo^x: Ser/ic'j t \4ai-cb 2018'December 2020 \ Concord. NH

As a cashier, I eagerly embraced the opportunity to be a vital part of the food preparation and service
{earn. My respcr.sibilities extended l^eyond the cash register, as I assisted with the preparation of dishes
and the presentation of meals while ensuring timely food service, maintaining hygiene standards in the
kitchen, and consistently delivering great service.

Markel basket

Cvshier I Jnraiary 2017'Febniary 2018 \ Concord. NH

As a cashier. I served as an important poifit of contact for customers, providing them with a positive arid
efficierst shopping experience. In addition to my cashier responsibilities, I embraced a role in enhancing
the store's overall functionalily. My commitment to cleanliness and organization was evident in my
c.iioicaticn '.o maintaining well-organized shelves. I restocked products to meet customer demand
promptly, contributing to the store's efficient operations while also ensuring that items were neatly
airanged and easily accessible.

Internship

Communities for Alcohol and Drug-Free Youth | Social Work Intern | January 2024-May 2024 i Plymouth.
NH

As an intern at Communities for Alcohol and Drug-Free Youth, I spent time in schools presenting
prever.iion curriculum to classrooms of elementary, to middle school aged students, t worked with youth
groups that strive to improve their community and hold prevention events. Within CADY I worked closely
witn the Restorative Justice program, working with the student from the beginning intake to the closing
panel.

Volunteer F:xpe< fence

I have had the opportunity to contribute to multiple fulfilling volunteer experiences. In high school I was
part of a club called Save Our Cold Kids (SOCK), in this club we volunteered at thrift stores, food

panlrles. and worked to gather clothing donations to support kids and classmates in need in our
community. I assisted at the local food pantry on other occasions around the holidays to help families get
the food and liolp they needed. During my education at Plymouth Slate University. I spent time
volunteering at Ladder's thrift Shop. I assisted at Ladder's in whatever area they needed to keep the store



running amoothly and help make sales that support the local Bridge House for individuals facing
homeiessness in the community.



Sarah june Irizciny

c. i fV /; A'//: /•■

Dynamic and creative paraprofessional with 20-i- years of experience working with students of all ages in a
inyria j of settings. Fkxibl.;, enthusiastic, team player with leadership skills and ability to engage in open
nundcd collaboration. Enjoys developing innovative, hands-on curriculum with differentiated instruction for
unique learning experiences. Well versed in supporting students and dedicated to instilling confidence and self-
vvtceni. Committed to building strong conneciicns and positive relationships with students, parents, coworkers
and the community. Excited to foster an atmosphere that engages and inspires.

•  Profi^sionnl and dependable • E.xcellenl interpersonal skills • Strong leadership qualities
Innovofive and optimistic • Proven written and oral skills • Enthusiastic motivator
.•\nibitioiis and eager to Icani • EITcciive communicator • Versatile and compassionate

.  : ! Hi.!- I \7.> HiH.A I'rJ) J-.XPH/Hli WC/:

Granite State Independent Living, IMPACCTAcadawy. Transition Specialist. Concord. NH (2021-Prcscn!)
•  Establish and suppoii post-secondary transition goals for students with disabilities
•  Inspite students to actively engage in their education and understand the relevance to fuatre career goals
• Create, develop and maintain relationships with local school district staff, adolescents, parents and

service providers
•  Build and foster community connections and relationships with local business

Hopkinton Middle High School Inclusion FacHitalor/lnsiruciional Assistant. Hopkinton. NH (2018-2021)
•  Engaged with Special Education Depaiiment team members to plan for/assess student learning
•  I'sed knowledge of unique learning styles to create measurable goal oriented instruction
• Wore many hats (!vl, general classroom lA. Special Ed. Para, substitute, field trip planning etc.)
• Had direct input and worked collaboratively on writing/developing lEP's and curriculum
•  Established rappoii with parents/guardians to facilitate communication and academic progress

fh'nnikcr Comtntinity School Special Ed Literacy Paraprofessional Henniker. NH (2014-2018)
• DiMerentiaicd instructional design within programs to engage diverse student learning needs
•» As^isled siudem.s in literacy development and academic endeavors in a variety of settings
• Worked collaboratively with teuchers and other staff to implement student academic/behavior plans
•> Managed student behaviors to ensure the best possible learning environment

Dynamite Sound Productions. Di.sc Jockey and Company Partner. .\'ew England Area (Aug '04-Preseni)
• Coordinate a variety of productions to meet individual and group needs and expectations
• Serve as phmary point of contact between clients, including facilitating meetings and planning
• Work under pressure, improvise, plan/manage timelines, control flow of imponani events
• Maintain high res ievvs and positive experiences to foster satisfied customers and repeal clients
• Responsible for all aspects of running a small business and fostering an impeccable reputation



The yUln^cr Nempaper. Si-weekly Cohininist/Feoiiirc IVriier Hillsboro, NH (Sept 09-June 10)
• Responsible for generating story pitches and composing and editing my own column
•  Successfully planned, navigated and facilitated numerous interviews
• Built contacts with many local citizens, programs, and organizations
• Handled press coverage, penned entertainment stories, and researched and wrote feature articles

Penn Van Middle School, Tcachar/Fadlitaiorfor 21" Ccniuiy Program. Penn Van. NY (Aiig 02-Dcc 03)
• Succcs.sfully developed and implemented after school program activities
• Adapted various motivational strategies to engage students academically and keep them on task
• Generated coniacl leads for new programs and networked with contacts to actualize programing
• Acieci as one-on-onc mentor support for several students, with focus on goal completion

Finger Lakes Parent NehvorkfJuveoUc Rc^ipilc Worker, Penn Yan. NY (Aiig 02-Dec 03)
•  Planned numerous children's group and individual outings, in-home respites, and on-site functions
•  Learned how to facilitate an environment conducive to students' emotional growth
• Adapted group management and program planning appropriate for children of diverse abilities

Pat's Peak Ski Area, PSIA Lv 1 Certified Ski Instructor, Henniker, NH (Dec 99-ApriI 2010)
• Taught an average of 6-8 lessons per day to children, teens and adults of all ages
•  In.SiTucted scho\»l program lessons, responsible for 50-75 adolescents daily
0 Designed and implemented a variety of lesson plans to meet learners' needs
• Vnriegaied insiiuction for different leaming styles, with attention to skill mastery and enjoyment

Mount Rcyul Academy. Academic Tutor. Ski Program Coordinator. Substitiiie. Simapee, NH (2008-2011)
• Worked with teachers and parents to deteimine individual student needs for tutoring
o  Planned and facilitated appropriate tutoring sessions in a range of subjects and levels
• Coc>i(linatcd group of 68 students 1 12''' grade and all parent chaperoncs for Ski Program
• Responsibilities included safety of all involved, smooth running of 6-week program, delegating tasks,

handling emergencies, ensuring completed paperwork and financial transfers, communicating
effectively with all involved agencies including MRA, Ski Mountain, transportation and parents

Richard E. llyrd Academy, Internship in 8^ Grade Muhi-Le\'cl Classroom. Chicago. iL (Jan 03-March 03)
• Navigated and gained knowledge of challenges facing students and teachers in urban classrooms
• Tailored lesson.s to meet the needs of the students

• Nurtured and inspired students to reach for their dreams

KOl ( A i lON aM) C LRI iKIC ATIONS:

Keuko College, Keuka Park. NY (Sept 00-Dec 03)
• Thiec completed ycar.s - Major in Secondary English Education
•  Education courses including; Educational Psychology, Foundations of Education, Early Human

Development. Study of Children's Literature, Diverse Learners

Bishop Brady High School, Concord. NH (96-00)
• College preparatory studies, Honors Diploma

Youth Development Practitioner - NH (October 2022)
Para // Certification - NH ('April 19)
CP! Certif cation (Non-violent Crisis Prevention and Intervention) - NH (Sept 19}



April H. Paye

SKILLS (k INTERESTS

Skills: Emotionally Intelligent, Easily Adaptable, Enthusiastic. Positive Outlook,

Team Player, Good Work Ethic, Problem Solving

Interests: Working with youth to establish skills for success

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Granite State Independent Living, Littleton, NH December 2024-Present

Trensiiion Specialist

• Work with disabled high school students to help them have a successful future

•  Partner v/ith community resources to foster positive achievements

•  Complete and submit administrative tasks in a timely manner

Independent Living Sen/ices Coordinator August 2023-December 2024

•  Partner with community members to reach disability related self-driven goals

•  Collaborate with vendors to obtain quotes

•  Research monies/grants available for funds to achieve goals

•  Complete and submit administrative tasks for approval

•  Oversee completion of various consumer projects

Privis Health, Raleigh, NC June 2020- April 2023

Gail Center Super\nsor/Software Tester

•  Schedule call center telehealth agents

•  Answer staff questions and take management-related calls

•  Test software that the Information Technology team created for telehealth



North Country Home Health and Hospice, Littleton, NH August 1999-Aprit 2020

Clerical Services Supervisor

•  Software Super User, Administrator, Help Desk

•  Project Manager for Software Transition

•  Compliance Committee

•  Information Technology Budgeting

LEADERSHIP & ACTIVITIES

Jazzy's Children Fund

«  Fundraising Planning

•  Volunteer for all Fundraisers

•  Board Member

North Country Home Health and Hospice

•  Hospice Volunteer

November 2013- Present

EDUCATION

Valley Regional High School, Deep River, CT

Stone School of Business, New Haven, CT

•  Executive Secretarial Certificate

Lean Six Sigma Certified

• White Belt

•  Green Belt

June 1980 -Septemberl983

July 1983- December 1983

July 2022

September 2022



OBJECTIVr-

r-XPHRIl-NCti

LINDA B F. L I V L A U

I.iiida lias a unique career [larhwae cicclicnted ro parincrinj^ w-iih
rhc commiiniry to buij<i pathways o( success fnr Nl I
siakchoklers. She cxcds at clcsij^iing npporrunities for people of
ail ages who experience life ciiffcrenrly. She has presciucct on
topics to support independence and success thrtni<>hc).ir Nl I. She
has gained lifelong experience as an assisiive technoloj^v
specialist learning from rhc best teachers, those who experience
chaMcngcs antl barriers ro gaining access u> wfirk, education, and
rhc social coini>oiu nis of life. Hoc passion is partnering with
others to create diversity, ctjuity, and inclusii.)n uppornjnitica for
all ages.

2023-2024 Granite Stale Independent Living

Manchester, NH

Transition vSpeciali.st

2021-2023 ATinNH Fnstitulc on Disability

Durham. NH

Assisiive Technology Specialist

•  Assisiive Technology Specialisi and Trainer for



2000-2006 GofTstown School District
NH

IZducationai Paraprofcssional

•  Provide educaiional support to students.

Goffstown,

DUCATfON

Franklin Pierce University

• Associate of Arts

Rindgc. NFi

Rei'crnnccs:

~0I7 Rcsna Rehabilitative Rnginocring and Assislivc
rcchnology Association ol'New England Arlington, Va

Kslhlcen Dabbin-Johnson
(''v'l.y.f-) v.'" •

Fred> Rivera

Alexis Eaton

Jennifer Stviianos



•  Provide training, consultation, and outreach to all
stakeholders in NH.

Prwide ns^Jstive lechiiology cxpcnise for assislive
technology' device loans and demonstralions.

::017~2021 Adult Learning Center Nashua, NH

•  Techrn}lo^: Spvciali.sl

Design and deliver college and career readiness
curncuiijin.

•  Provide technical assistance to NAI.C stafT, WlOA
Staff, and counselors.

•  Research, recommend, and impleinent programs,
software, and apps to prepare adult lettrners for 21^
Century Digital Literacy.
Administrator and facilitator for

Attend sime-lcvel meetings regarding resources
available tor adult education.

Serve as Google and NH Adult bd Canvas
Administrator.

Provide recommendations for future technoioav
purchases.

2006-2017 Crotched Mountain ATF.CH Services Concord,

/l.v.v/.y//vc Tt'chnolof!y Specialis!
•  Provided consuilalive services to individuals and groups.
• Managed a variety of .special projects to incrca.se

awareness of as.sistive technology.
• Mulli-lnsked with multiple priorities; report writing,

customer service, service delivery, product exploration
and fabrication. '

•  Provided oral and written communication to cn.sure clear
understanding by a broad range of the socioeconomic,
cultural, and cognitively diverse population.

•  Collaborated vvith clinicians and the director to ensure the
values and mission of the nonprofit were at the forefront of
the workload.



Hayley Mcclintock

vvof '^ Rxpei'ience

Transition Specialist
OhiriU- Suite WvilL'pt.'niJi'nt Living-CJovt-f. NH

20?.'}> tc

Bud tender/Receptionist
Truck f'ortns-i.inford. ME

rtrii'h 20?'J- ri Prusont

Budtender

S!LVE?« TWEP.APEUT!':S-Be^wic,k. ME

Au'jmsc T023 ""c Preseii;

Cannabls Consultant

Vi.'-:civ VVellnea.i-Kittef/, ME

Or 2C>2 -.o April ?C23

Lead Preschool Teacher

i lappv Helpei's E«lucsrtonal Center-Dover, Mi-i

J'.iiy 20/1 to Feoi'iiftry 2022

(Left, because a friend of mine opened a child care center of her own and offered me my own classroom.)

Lead Toddler Teacher

Kidi Culture C' •ac-.ire and Learning Contet-Sarvingtot!. MM

S«. prc-nib-v 2020 to July 2021

(Left due to a poor/toxic work environment.)

Assistant Teacher

Cuji-.-i^on C-ty t-aCv Ch'Idhood Center-Dover, NH

Jui'iO 20?C .0 Septei*'l.-or 2020

Acaptabilliy (Left due to better job offer.)

Critical thinking

Assistant toddler/infant Teacher

liv-.l.i Hunc'S Chiidcai'c-Soinersvroftlv NH

SviCcrnbcr 2019 '.0 H-.irch 2020

Communication (Closed- permanently due to Covid-19)

Teamwork



^ducotioi"^

Diploma
Dover Senior High School

3 years of onlina college in Early Childhood Education and special education
Granite State College

Stocking

Leadership

Classroom experierice

Ketail sales

Microsoft Word

Communication skills

Time nianagement

Microsoft Office

Driving

Organizational skills

Childcare

Customer service

English

Delivery driver experience

PCS

Product demos

Cie'ical experience

Cash handling

Computer skills

Teaching

Retail math

Sales

Cash 'cgiste''

Basic math



VALERIE A. KIDDER

QUALIFICATIONS

o Business Devclopmcnr/Marketing; Proficient in understanding budget planning, forecasting, and customer
service. Ability to c.vccute marketing programs and implement strategies.

□ Conirrmnicntion: /knJculatc and persuasive in speech and manner. Natural ability to work with others, empiovinu
laci ctnd .s.Mr>itivity U) nil imerpci-sonu! relations, developing a good rapport with staff, and clients.

a Oenion:.traiied Sales Performer: Results driven with a record for exceeding goals. Adept at identifying and
meeting client needs. Inspire loyally with a high standard of sei\ ice and customer satisfaction.

J Management: Self-starter. Strong planning, organizational and leadership skills. Effectively execute assignmcir:s.
doierniine realistic goals, establish priorities and managing cross-functional teams.

EXPERIENCE

GRaMTESTATE I.NDEPENDENTMVING 2012 - Present
Paraji:ofi'ssion:ilfor Etlucution Services (part-time) 2025 -
Provide work-readiness education to students with disabilities. Maintain a positive, structured classroom selling where
the standards ol work eiiqueite are upheld and students feel safe, welcome, productive, and successful. Assist students
in 1:1 seltiog along with group instRiction. Assist with the delivery of the curriculum.

director. Admin and Supportive Services 2012 - 2025 (retired)
l',cspcnsible for the development of statewide supportive services strengthening the administrative functions of GSiLs
ser^ ices. Provide and promote the marketing and outreach activities. Direct and manage the daily processes to include:
sttnicg.c goals, neu' serv ice initiatives, supervision of (4) departments, and maintain relationships with key
stakeholders. Ensure compliance with federal and state rules, Managed Care Organizations, overseeing quality
assurance with our programs and services.

^ A.' sis: in the development of the strategic plan. Led in the implementation of GSIL's services.
> Perform and successfully manage the daily administration and oversight of programs.

Develop and maintain policies and procedures consistent with the governing rules, applying continuous
improvement to existing processes,

r- Oveis<uv the CARES Act Funding process executing requests against plans, budgets and timelines working in
close collaboration with leadership and other depanments. Give input into developing the budget.

> Cultivate ccmiHunity panners and relationships.
> Ensure all relevant state and federal regulations arc met and adhered to.
>  Promote the use of GSIL programs through outreach to consumers, the coininuniiy and the legislature.

BENCH-VIARK SENIOR LIVING 20) 1-2012
Director, Conuuiinity Relations
Responsible for achieving maximum occupancy and total revenue potential of the community bv attracting and lourins
qualified prospects to the community and convening those prospects into residents.

>  .Analyzed the strengths and weaknesses of the community compared to competitors and developed strategies
to sell against the competition. Produced a competitive market analysis.

NEW ENGLAND HO.VIE THERAPIES 2009-2011
Account Executive
Responsible for positioning home healthcare solutions througliout the state of NH calling on physicians, nurses,
respiratory therapists, and other healthcare providers in hospital, office, and clinic setting.

> Developed (4) new accounts/rcferral sources with fi rst 9 months.
^ Landed 1" business agreement with a growing rehab hospital, initiating a new ventilator program.



/OtNDS HEARING INC. 2008-2009
Ugt(h^e(i :Hjs.wchtiSi'lfs Hi/ari/ig Instrument Dispenser
Mr.'.iaced n ̂ lart-up hearing aid b-isiness in Massachuseiis. Performed a full range ofdiagnosiic hearing and auclioldgic
icsrir.g. hearing assessments, as well as dispensing the latest technology in hearing amplification.

> Ranked f-1 practice out of 27 nationwide stores within 6 weeks of operation.
r' Gcncrctcd 5300,000 within 5 tnonths.

MlRACl.E EAR (CONSUMER HEARING CONSULTANTS) 2005-2008
Lisensed Sc n> H(iinpshiie/\fassucliusetts Hearing Instrument Dispenser
Sutccssfiiliy ser\'ed and fitted paricnt needs related to identifying, testing, fining, selling, repairing, and providinc on
going follow-up services to new and existing patients.

Vlanaged (2) practices in New Hampshire.
^ Designed and implemented customer outreach programs to Senior Centers, Assisted Living Faciiities, Nui-sing

Homes, Council on Aging. Community Health Fairs and Chamber of Commerce Events.

PC CO.NNECTION, IXC 2002-2005
Direelnr. yturketing Programs
Super, isfd a team of (4) cross-functional managers, working with Product Management. Merchandising and Business
Opcniiions to identify, develop and implement strategic programs.

Ntanaged the e.xecution. coordination and tracking of all demand generation programs, direct mail, seminai^s.
conferences, and trade shows.

COMPAQ COMPUTER (FORMERLY DIGITAL EQUIPMENT CORPORA nON) 1997-2002
Manager, Business Devehpjuent Compaq's Life Sciences Indnstry Solutions 199S-2002
Managed relationships wiiSi key partners, application vendors and system integrators to grow solutions across ail
plaifomi.s. Developed demand generation programs. Planned advisory councils, seminars, conferences, trade shows,
and partner user group meetings.

^  .VLmaged a S1.5M budget for the Life Sciences industry Solutions Group.
^  Initiated 5 new strategic business partnerships generating over 51.6M in incremental sales.

Marketing Manager, Mobile Products \ 997. j 993
Launched a new mobile product line including the activities of market research, product plan development, reportine
of sales lo'. ccasi and client presentations. Planned trade shows and industry events.

^  Implemented business and marketing plans to support commercial business and product demand.
Managed product life cycle: generated demand, balanced supply, developed promotions and pricing.

EDUCATION

Master of Business .Administration, Rivier University, Nashua. NH
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, Plymouth State University. Plymouth, NH

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Asseniveiie^ Training-Dealing with Difficult People/Negotiating Techniques/One Minute Manaacr
Traiii-the-Tiiiiner Seminar and Quality Leadership Program
Project Management Certification Course ai Manchester Community College

ADDITIONAL ACTIVITIES

Board member for the NH Conference on Aging
Committee Member for the NH Caregivers Conference
Personal Care Attendant/Home Health Aide

\"oluiueer. Southern NH Rescue Mission (homeless shelter) and the Nashua Humane Society
Substitute teacher, grades K-8
CCD Teacher, trrade 4


